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Company Profile

Park Electrochemic Corp is global advanced materials company which develops and manufactures high

technology digital and RF/microwave printed circuit materials principally for the telecommunications and internet

infrastructure and high-end computing markets and advanced composite materials and parts principally for the aerospace

markets Parks core capabilities are in the areas of polymer chemistry formulation and coating technology Park also

specializes in the manufacture of complex composite aircraft and space vehicle parts The Companys manufacturing

facilities are located in Singapore China France Connecticut Kansas Arizona California and Washington
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Earnings loss from continuing

operations

Earnings loss from continuing

12361 33933 36109 26303 20410 29786 51159 33514 66038 23768

operations

Earnings loss from continuing

operations before income taxes

Net earnings loss from continuing

operations before special items

Net earnings loss from continuing

operations

Net earnings loss from continuing

operations

Diluted earnings loss per share

from continuing operations before

special items

Diluted earnings loss per share

from continuing operations

Earnings loss per share from

discontinued operations

Return on stockholders equity

Current assets

Current liabilities

Working capital

Current ratio

Property plant and equipmentnet

Total assets

Long-term debt

Stockholders equity

Total capitalization

Other Data

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Equity per share

Cash dividends per share

Average number of employees

Sales per employee

Average common shares outstanding

263931 271039 266332 253661 243662 240082 210585 210361 268611 236779

24286 31979 32565 38727 36948 42629 40311 43361 80100 60666

239645 239060 233767 214934 206714 197453 170274 167000 188511 176113

10.9 8.5 82 6.6 6.6 5.6 5.2 4.9 3.4 3.9

48777 47188 49895 54370 63251 70569 90503 149810 159309 125977

327579 327407 321922 311312 307311 311070 301542 360644 430581 365252

97672 100000

295709 269172 264167 245423 242857 243896 245701 292546 228906 179118

295709 269172 264167 245423 242857 243896 245701 292546 326578 279118

12224 4525 4793 4293 3330 4509 6168 25686 53411 26646

7707 8286 8992 9645 10202 11978 17973 16257 16724 16264

14.45 13.23 13.08 12.20 12.19 12.33 12.48 14.89 14.23 11.30

.32 1.82 1.32 1.32 1.26 .24 .24 .24 .23 .21

797 906 942 978 1109 1150 1400 1690 2650 2380

251 267 273 227 190 158 120 119 177 160

20441 20305 20175 20047 19879 19754 19674 19535 15932 15761

Ten Year Statistical Growth Highlights

In thousands except per share data

Mar Mar Feb 25 Feb 26 Feb 27 Feb 29 Mar Mar Feb 25 Feb 27

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Operations

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Gross profit

$200062 $241852 $257377 $222251 $211187 $194236 $195578 $201681 $469121 $381685

156638 179398 193270 167650 167937 161536 168921 185014 355400 310532

43424 62454 64107 54601 43250 32700 26657 16667 113721 71153

21.7 25.8 24.9 24.6 20.5 16.8 13.6 8.3 24.2 18.6

24806 27159 26682 25129 26960 27962 27157 33668 47683 42921

12.4 11.2 10.4 11.3 12.8 14.4 13.9 16.7 10.1 11.2

6.2 14.0 14.0 11.8 9.7 15.3 26.2 16.6 14.1 6.2

19009 43294 44142 32359 23796 32744 47899 28141 68758 24573

18859 34541 35002 31620 18102 7031 3589 6731 47795 20383

18514 34679 39791 26875 21605 29909 43864 17414 47795 18488

9.3 14.3 15.5 12.1 10.2 15.4 22.4 8.6 10.2 4.8

.92 1.70 1.72 1.57 .90 .35 .18 .35 2.39 1.04

.90 1.70 1.96 1.33 1.08 1.50 2.23 .89 2.57 1.13

.81 1.69 .35 .42 .08 .01

12.4 12.9 15.1 11.0 8.9 1.6 18.9 9.8 24.2 10.6

In addition to the benefits charges and gains described in the paragraphs following the Financial Highlights table on the preceding page the after-tax losses income related to Dioloktras

operating losses income and asset impairments for the fiscal years 200t and 2000 were $t624 and $t9t respectively the Company recorded net pre-tax charges in fiscal year
2003

totaling $50659 related to the write-down of fixed assets at continuing operations in North America the closure of its Nelco U.K business unit and workorce reductions at North Amencari

business unit and gain of $3t70 related to the sale of its Oiolectric Polymers Inc subsidiary the Company recorded pre-tax charges totaling $t65t3 in fiscal year 2002 comprised of

$t5707 related to the sale of its mass lamination business in Arizona and the closure of related support facility and $806 related to restructuring and workforce reductions at continuing

operations and the Company recorded charge of $4464 in fiscal year 2000 related to the closure of its plumbing hardware business

The information in the table above relating to continuing operations for fiscal years 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 and 2000 includes all the benefits charges and gains

described in the paragraphs following the Financial Highlights table on the preceding page and in the preceding paragraph except net earnings loss from continuing operations before

special items and diluted earnings loss per share from continuing operations before special items which do not include such benefits charges and gains
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Park Eectrochemical Corp 2009 Annual Report

Financial Highlights

March March Feb 25 Feb 26 Feb 27

In thousands except per share data 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Net sales $200062 $241852 $257377 $222251 $211187

Gross profit 43424 62454 64107 54601 43250

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes 19009 43294 44142 32359 23796

Net earnings from continuing operations before special items 18859 34541 35002 31620 18102

Net earnings 35000 34679 39791 26875 21605

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations before

special items .92 1.70 1.72 1.57 .90

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations .90 1.70 .96 1.33 1.08

Diluted earnings per share .71 1.70 .96 1.33 .08

Cash dividends per share .32 1.82 .32 1.32 .26

Average common shares outstanding 20441 20305 20175 20047 19879

Working capital 239645 239060 233767 214934 206714

Total assets 327579 327407 321922 311312 307311

Long-term debt

Stockholders equity 295709 269172 264167 245423 242857

Equity per share 14.45 13.23 13.08 12.20 12.19

In fiscal
year 2009 the Company recorded

pre-tax charges of $5688 related to the closure of its New England Laminates Co Inc electronic materials business unit in Newburgh New York

and the closure of its Neltec Europe SAS electronic materials business unit in Mirebeau France and related to work force reduction and an asset impairment at its Nelco Products Pte Ltd

electronic materials and advanced composite materials business unit in Singapore and pre-tax charge of $570 related to restructurings at certain of its North American and European business

units and recognized tax benefits of $1236 related to these charges and tax benefit of $4677 related to the elimination of valuation allowances resulting principally from the closure of the

New England Laminates Co Inc business unit and recorded discontinued operations benefit of $16486 related to the elimination of liability from discontinued operations of its

Dielektra GmbH subsidiary located in Germany

In fiscal year 2008 the Company recorded an employment termination benefits charge of $1362 related to work force reduction at the Companys business unit in Mirebeau France and

tax benefit of $1500 relating to the reduction of tax reserves

In fiscal
year 2007 the Company recorded tax benefit of $715 relating to the recognition of tax credits resulting from operating losses sustained in prior years in France pre-tax charge

of $1316 in connection with the termination of life insurance arrangement with Jerry Shore the Companys founder and former Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer and

tax benefit of $499 relating to such insurance termination charge In fiscal year 200Z the Company also recognized tax benefits of $3500 relating to the elimination of certain valuation

allowances previously established relating to deferred tax assets in the United States and $1391 relating to the elimination of reserves no longer required as the result of the completion

of tax audit

In fiscal year 2006 the Company recognized tax benefit of $1512 relating to the reversal of valuation allowances against deferred tax assets previously recorded in the United States and

recorded tax charge of $3088 in connection with the repatriation of approximately $70000 of accumulated earnings and profits of its business unit in Singapore pre-tax asset impairment

charge of $2280 for the write-off of construction Costs related to the installation of treater at the Companys business unit in Mirebeau France and pre-tax employment termination ben

efits charge of $889 related to work force reduction at the Companys business unit in Mirebeau France

In fiscal year 2005 the Company recorded pre-tax gain of $4 745 as result of the settlement of an insurance claim for property and business interruption losses sustained by the Company

in Singapore in November 2002 In fiscal year 2005 the Company also recorded pre-tax charges of $625 for severance payments resulting from work force reductions at the Companys North

American and European electronic materials business units

The information in the table above relating to continuing operations for fiscal years 2009 2008 2007 2006 and 2005 includes all the benefits charges and gains described in the preceding

paragraphs except net earnings from continuing operations before special items and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations before special items which do not include such

benefits charges and gains
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Parks overarching focus during the entire 2009 fiscal year

was and continues to be to this day the growth and devel

opment of the business for our advanced composite product

lines for the aircraft and space vehicle industries Our advanced

composite product lines consist of both advanced composite

materials used to fabricate structural and non-structural aircraft

and space vehicle parts as well as the parts themselves In

that sense Park is vertically integrated supplier to the aero

space industry with the technical and manufacturing capability

to engineer and manufacture both composite materials and

composite parts for aircraft and space vehicles

During the entire 2009 fiscal year through today we have been

engaged in full-court business development marketing and

sales press directed towards the aerospace OEMs and the

aerospace industry in general Just year or so ago Park was

almost complete unknown in the aircraft industry and

although we are still the new kid on the block believe Park is

now very firmly on the map in the aircraft OEM community

We are not an unknown anymorel

During the 2009 fiscal year through today we spent very

significant amount of time recruiting screening and ultimately

hiring engineering and technical talent from the aerospace

industry Although number of key Park people have learned

an enormous amount about the aircraft industry and its very

unique and specialized technologies we still felt we were

light with respect to the engineering and technical talent

needed to meet our company objectives We therefore felt we

needed to bring additional talent in from the outside We are

not done yet but we have recruited and hired number of

good solid technical and engineering people to support Parks

aircraft related activities

At Park our objective has always been to compete based upon

unique capabilities rather than low-cost or volume-oriented

manufacturing orientation We learned that lesson as well as

many other valuable lessons from our many years of expe

rience in the electronics industry So rather than focus only

on the production of build-to-print aircraft composite parts

build-to-print manufacturing refers to the production of parts

for the aircraft industry under circumstances where the aircraft

OEM is fully responsible for the design of the parts in question

and the manufacturer builds the parts in conformance with

the design specifications developed and provided by the

OEM Parks objective is to both design and manufacture the

composite parts for the aircraft OEM Our feeling is that many

aircraft OEMs are increasingly looking to their composite parts

PARK
ELECTROCHEMICAL CORP



suppliers to perform the design work related to the parts In

any event we believe this design capability will provide Park

with some degree of uniqueness which as stated is what

Park always strives for You might say that this is brains not

just brawn approach to our business

In addition to performing design work for the aircraft GEMs

Park is interested in the SIC or Supplemental Type Cer

tificate arena Supplemental Type Certificates are issued

by the FAA as supplements to existing aircraft FAA Type

Certificates These STCs are based upon some form of air

craft upgrade or modification which is approved by the FAA

Our objective is to design and develop composite parts modifi

cations to existing certified aircraft for which Park would apply

for the STCs This SIC activity can be done in conjunction with

an OEM or independently In either event Park would not only

design and manufacture the composite parts related to the

modification but Park would also own the STC issued by the

FAA Obviously developing and owning STCs would provide

Park with another degree of uniqueness Now we

are not there yet We are still in the process of developing

the capability and recruiting the talent necessary to perform

composite parts related SIC work Nevertheless thought it

would be appropriate to share this Park objective with you

Of course during the 2009 fiscal year we also made major

investments in order to enhance and facilitate the growth and

development of our aircraft industry related activities During

the year we acquired the assets of Nova Composites Inc

based in Lynnwood Washington This new Park business

which is now called Park Aerospace Structures Corp pro

duces advanced composite parts for the aircraft and space

vehicle industry These parts are often produced with Parks

advanced composite materials We also completed our new

Park Aircraft Technologies Corp PATC advanced compos

ite materials development and manufacturing facility located at

the Newton Kansas Airport This beautiful if may say so

myself facility is and suspect will be for years to come the

center of the universe for Parks aircraft-related develop

ment and manufacturing activities As matter of fact we are

very actively considering and studying the expansion of that

facility in order to enable the facility to design and produce

aircraft composite parts and to accommodate additional tech

nical and business development activities

And lastly in the area of development activities related to the

aircraft industry we should touch on our MA activities As

is widely known Park has very strong balance sheet and

very strong cash position It seems that as result of the

global financial crisis cash may finally matter For many years

sometimes to our frustration the cash

which we worked hard to earn the old-

fashioned way seemed to be almost

irrelevant because cash was so easily

available to almost anyone Park has

been actively looking for acquisitions

which would enhance or accelerate our

strategic penetration into or growth in the

aircraft industry Now we are taking our

time we believe that time may finally be

on our side and we are looking for stra

tegic opportunities only we are not look

ing to do acquisitions for the sake of doing

acquisitions But we are hopeful that if

we keep at it some good acquisition

opportunities may come our way soon

We shall see

Parks patented campssLte struts srr NASAs Max Launch Abort Systerrr LMLAS test verce The struts rrdcated by

the arrows above are teet rr lesxttr



So how have we done so far with our

business development efforts directed

towards the aerospace industry Well

we have hired number of solid technical

and engineering people related to the

aircraft industry as previously stated

We acquired what is now called Park

Aerospace Structures Corp We com

pleted our new PATC facility in Newton

Kansas We have been involved in an

enormous amount of quoting and long-

term contract related activities with

almost all the major aircraft OEMs But

would have to say that we are not there

yet and we have way to go before we

accomplish our business development

objectives related to the aircraft industry

Will we succeed think the vote is still

out on that question However as previously mentioned just

maybe year or two ago Park was almost complete unknown

in the aircraft industry. .a nobody One thing would say for

sure is that Park is not nobody in the aircraft industry

anymore

Parks ircitot ics oduct

Since we were basic unknowns in the aircraft industry until

very recently Park has had to focus and concentrate sig

nificant amount of its sales marketing development and

investment activities towards that industry in order to break

in and become player Anything less than an all-out effort

would have resulted in failure and been waste of time in

my opinion We gave it the all-out effort necessary for suc

cess as that success was and is critical for Parks future in

my opinion

But that does not mean to even the smallest degree that we

are moving away from or backing off of the electronics indus

try Although hear that some of our competitors may whisper

such things to our electronics manufacturing customers and

OEMs from time to time there actually could be nothing

further from the truth As matter of fact major portion

2009 Annua Report

of Parks RD efforts continue to be directed towards the

electronics industry and our electronics product line am

personally very pleased that we have made the consuming

effort necessary to establish presence in the aircraft indus

try and do not apologize for doing so However any implica

tions drawn from those efforts to the effect that we are no

longer committed to the electronics industry are simply untrue

and without foundation

tiil You

As usual would like to thank you for taking the time to read

my letter also would like to ask you to please take the time

to read the following letters written by some of Parks other

key people if you can find the time to do so

is pleasure dealing with you Thank you for your interest in

our company wish you the best in the coming year

Sincerely

Brian Shore President and Chief Executive Officer

PARK
ELECTROCHEMICAL CORP
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We completed several important safety initiatives focusing

on process and employee safety

The entire Park organization broke its Days Accident Free

record

Our business units were able to celebrate their owr accom

uments including business units with 500 600 and even

days accident free

learned that safety is not achieved with programs or poli

cies safe worspace is possib only with the involvement

of all employees the safety process

We earned that people watching the sate work behavior of

others leads to people watching their own work behavior

This awareness leads to their changed behavior which leads

to accident prevention

We learned that reporting and investigating near misses

even more mportant than investigating accidents since

nvestigat ng near misses will prevent the accidents There

will always be hazards in the workplace But with everyone

aware and willing to address these hazards the accidents

can be prevented

We earned that people make safety happen through their

awareness and llingness to follow established safe work

practices

ts\

Our people are proud of their accomplishments Although we
all recognize that continuing this safety record will take hard

work our people recognize the importance and are ready for

the cha lenge

Although we recognize that we cannot eliminate all hazards

our goal will always be to eliminate all accidents

Yto1ft

Ne Co Products Ful ertor

Ne co PTE Sir gapore 228

Nelco Tectnology Zhuha 416

Neltec SA 668

Neitec Tempe 374

Perk Advanced Composite Mater ais 60

Park Aircraft Techno og es Corp V55ttttt2WW 319

Park Aerospace Structures Corp 441
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Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

General

Park is global advanced materials company which develops

manufactures markets and sells high-technology digital and

RF/microwave printed circuit materials principally for the tele

communications and internet infrastructure and high-end com

puting markets and advanced composite materials and parts

principally for the aerospace markets Parks core capabilities

are in the areas of polymer chemistry formulation and coating

technology Park also specializes in the manufacture of com

plex composite aircraft and space vehicle parts The Companys

manufacturing facilities are located in Singapore China France

Connecticut Kansas Arizona California and Washington The

Companys products are marketed and sold under the Nelco

Nelcote and NovaTM names

The comparisons of the Companys results of operations for

its 2009 fiscal year ended March 2009 to the Companys

results of operations for its 2008 fiscal year ended March

2008 and the comparisons of the Companys results of opera

tions for its 2008 fiscal year to the Companys results of opera

tions for its 2007 fiscal year ended February 25 2007 are

impacted by the facts that the 2008 fiscal year consisted of

53 weeks and the 2009 and 2007 fiscal years each consisted of

52 weeks

The Companys total net sales declined in the fiscal year

ended March 2009 compared to the fiscal year ended

March 2008 as result of decreases in sales of the

Companys printed circuit materials products in North America

Asia and Europe following decline in the Companys total net

sales in the fiscal year ended March 2008 compared to the

fiscal year ended February 25 2007 as result of decreases

in sales of the Companys printed circuit materials products in

North America and Europe These decreases in sales of the

Companys printed circuit materials were only partially offset by

increases in sales of the Companys advanced composite mate

rials in the 2009 fiscal year compared to the 2008 fiscal

year and in the 2008 fiscal year compared to the 2007 fiscal

year and in the 2009 fiscal year by the addition of sales of

the Companys advanced composite parts products as result

of the Companys acquisition of the composite parts business

of Nova Composites in Lynnwood Washington in the 2009

fiscal year first quarter

As result of the declines in the Companys total net sales in

the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years compared to the immediately

preceding fiscal years the Companys earnings from continuing

operations were lower in the 2009 fiscal year than in the 2008

fiscal year and lower in the 2008 fiscal year than in the 2007

fiscal year

PARK
ELECTROCHEMICAL CORP

The significant decreases in sales of printed circuit materials

products combined with among other things substantial

losses at the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic materi

als business unit in Mirebeau France resulted in lower gross

profits and lower earnings from continuing operations in the

2009 fiscal year compared to the 2008 fiscal year The declines

in the Companys operating and earnings performances during

the 2009 fiscal year compared to the 2008 fiscal year were

partially offset by higher percentages of sales of higher margin

high performance printed circuit materials and advanced com

posite materials products during the 2009 fiscal year and by the

benefits resulting from the restructurings of the Companys

Neltec Europe SAS and Neltec SA business units in the 2008

fiscal year and from the workforce reductions at the Nelco

Products Inc Neltec Inc and Nelco Products Pte Ltd busi

ness units and the closures of the New England Laminates Co
Inc and Neltec Europe SAS business units in the 2009 fiscal

years all described elsewhere in this Discussion

The Companys net earnings for the 2009 fiscal year were

significantly increased by discontinued operations benefit

of $16.5 million recorded by the Company in the 2009 fiscal

year fourth quarter related to the elimination of liability from

discontinued operations of the Companys Dielektra GmbH

subsidiary located in Germany as result of certain legal pro

ceedings in Germany The Companys earnings were also

increased by tax benefit of $4.7 million recorded by the

Company in the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter related to the

elimination of certain valuation allowances resulting principally

from the closure of the Companys New England Laminates

Co Inc electronic materials business unit located in Newburgh

New York and by tax benefit of $1.2 million recorded by

the Company in the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter related to

one-time pre-tax charges also recorded by the Company in

such quarter for the aforementioned closure of the Companys

New England Laminates Co Inc business unit and the closure

of the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic materials

business unit located in Mirebeau France and for workforce

reduction and an asset impairment at the Companys Nelco

Products Pte Ltd electronic materials and advanced compos

ite materials business unit in Singapore Such benefits were

partially offset by the one-time pre-tax charges of $5.7 million

recorded by the Company in the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter

related to the aforementioned business unit closures work

force reduction and asset impairment and by one-time pre-tax

charge of $0.6 million recorded by the Company in the 2009

fiscal year third quarter related to restructurings at certain of its

North American and European business units

13



Park EIectrochemca Corp and Subsidiaries

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

continued

The Companys net earnings for the fiscal year ended March

2008 were increased by tax benefit of $1.5 million recorded

by the Company in the 2008 fiscal year fourth quarter resulting

from the reduction of tax reserves in the United States related

to transfer pricing and were reduced by charge of $1.4 million

recorded by the Company in the 2008 fiscal year fourth quarter

for employment termination benefits and other expenses

related to restructuring and workforce reduction at the

Companys Neltec Europe SAS business unit

The markets for the Companys printed circuit materials prod

ucts have contracted from the levels that existed in the 2007

fiscal year Consequently sales of the Companys printed

circuit materials products decreased in the 2009 fiscal year

compared to the 2008 fiscal year and in the 2008 fiscal

year compared to the 2007 fiscal year The markets for the

Companys advanced composite materials and parts continued

to be relatively strong during the first half of the 2009 fiscal

year and sales of the Companys advanced composite mate

rials products increased in the 2009 fiscal year compared to

the 2008 fiscal year and in the 2008 fiscal year compared to the

prior fiscal year principally as result of the Companys market

ing and sales efforts

The global markets for the Companys printed circuit mate

rials products continue to be very difficult to forecast and it

is not clear to the Company what the condition of the global

markets for the Companys printed circuit materials products

will be in the 2010 fiscal year Further the Company is not able

to predict the impact the current global financial and credit

crisis will have on the markets for its advanced composite

materials and parts products in the 2010 fiscal year

As previously reported in the first quarter of the Companys
rrrc ..-i k-II -fl-
z.uuc iSnai yoau ii .jr F0 ry .o vvr

rurry .jvvr au Su1jS...or

Aerospace Structures Corp acquired substantially all the

assets and business of Nova Composites Inc manufacturer

of composite parts and the tooling for such parts located in

Lynnwood Washington for cash purchase price of $4.5 mil

lion paid at the closing of the acquisition and up to an additional

$5.5 million payable over five years depending on the achieve

ment of specified earn-out objectives

In addition in the fourth quarter of the Companys 2009

fiscal year the Company completed the construction of new

development and manufacturing facility in Newton Kansas

to produce advanced composite materials principally for the

aircraft industry The Company spent approximately $15 million

on the facility and equipment in Kansas

In the fourth quarter of the 2009 fiscal year the Company

recorded discontinued operation benefit of $16.5 million

related to the elimination of liability from discontinued opera

tions of the Companys Dielektra GmbH subsidiary located in

Germany as result of certain legal proceedings in Germany

In the fourth quarter of the 2008 fiscal year the Company

opened its new advanced composite materials manufacturing

plant in Singapore which it had acquired in the 2007 fiscal year

and modified and expanded for use as composite materials

manufacturing plant

As previously reported the Company discontinued its.par

ticipation in the bidding for certain of the assets and business

of Columbia Aircraft Manufacturing Corporation Columbia

in an auction conducted in the United States Bankruptcy Court

for the District of Oregon in Portland Oregon on November

27 2007 and incurred approximately $0.5 million in out-

of-pocket expenses relating to its extensive due diligence

investigation of Columbia in Bend Oregon and elsewhere all

of which was expensed in the 2008 fiscal year third quarter

ended November 25 2007

In the fourth quarter of the 2008 fiscal year the Company

also recorded tax benefit of $1.5 million relating to the

reduction of tax reserves in the United States related to trans

fer pricing

In the 2007 fiscal year the Company completed the construc

tion of new manufacturing facility in the Zhuhai Free Trade Zone

in Guangdong Province in southern China During the 2008 fiscal

year the Company modified certain of the equipment in this

facility so that it can laminate polytetrafluoroethylene PTFE
based circuitry materials in Asia In addition the Company

upgraded its printed circuit materials treating operation in

Singapore during the 2007 fiscal year so that such operation is

capable of treating the Companys full line of advanced printed

circuit materials in Singapore except PTFE materials

While the Company continues to invest in its business it also

continues to make additional adjustments to certain of its

operations which have resulted in workforce reductions and

plant closures

In the 2008 fiscal year fourth quarter the Companys Neltec

Europe SAS electronic materials business unit located in

Mirebeau France completed restructuring of its operations

and reduction of its workforce in response to the continuing

erosion of the markets for electronic materials in Europe and

the continuing migration of such markets to Asia and the

14



Company recorded one-time charge of approximately $1.4

million in such quarter for employment termination benefits and

other expenses resulting from such restructuring and workforce

reduction In addition in the 2006 fiscal year first and second

quarters the Company reduced the size of the workforce at its

Neltec Europe SAS business unit as result of deterioration

of the European market for high-technology printed circuit

materials and it recorded an employment termination benefits

charge of $0.9 million during the 2006 fiscal year

Despite the restructurings implemented in the 2006 and

2008 fiscal years Neltec Europe generated significant operat

ing losses in the second and third quarters of the 2009 fiscal

year In the 2009 fiscal year third quarter the Company

announced that its Neltec Europe SAS and Neltec SA business

units were proposing to restructure their operations and that

as major component of such restructurings Neltec Europe

SAS was proposing to close completely its operations and had

commenced an information and consultation process with its

employees regarding the proposed closure in accordance with

French law Although the Company intends to continue the

operations of its Neltec SA RF/microwave electronic materials

business unit located in Lannemezan France the proposed

restructuring included reorganization of certain of the activi

ties of Neltec SA Neltec Europe SAS proposed to close fully its

operations in response to the very serious erosion of the mar

kets for digital electronic materials in Europe and the migration

of such markets to Asia The market for such products in Europe

had eroded to the point where the Company believed it was

not possible for the Neltec Europe SAS business to be viable

Neltec Europe SAS completed the information and consultation

process with its employees early in the 2009 fiscal year fourth

quarter and the Company implemented the plant closure and

recorded one-time pre-tax charge of $4.1 million reduced by

$4.0 million of non-cash cumulative currency translation adjust

ment recapture in the fourth quarter of the Companys 2009

fiscal year

In addition to the restructurings of its Neltec Europe SAS and

NelteO SA business units in France the Company implemented

workforce reductions at its Nelco Products Inc electronic

materials business unit located in Fullerton California and its

Neltec Inc high-technology electronics circuitry materials busi

ness unit located in Tempe Arizona in the third quarter of its

2009 fiscal year and recorded charge of $0.6 million in such

quarter for such workforce reductions and for the restructuring

at its Neltec SA business unit in Lannemezan France

In addition in the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter the

Company implemented workforce reduction at its Nelco

Products Pte Ltd high-technology electronics circuitry materi

als and advanced composite materials business unit located

in Singapore and as result of this workforce reduction the

Company recorded charge of $0.4 million in the fourth

quarter of the 2009 fiscal year

Also in the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter the Companys

New England Laminates Co Inc electronic materials business

unit located in Newburgh New York closed its operations in

response to the very serious erosion of the markets for elec

tronic materials in North America and as the result of this

closure the Company recorded one-time pre-tax charge of

$1.2 million in the fourth quarter of the 2009 fiscal year

Since the closures of the Neltec Europe SAS and New

England Laminates Co Inc business units the Company has

been supplying and supporting customers of such business

units from the Companys electronic materials operations in

Fullerton California and Tempe Arizona

The total one-time pre-tax charges related to the restruc

turings of the Companys Neltec Europe SAS and Neltec SA

business units in the 2009 fiscal year the workforce reductions

at the Nelco Products Inc Neltec Inc and Nelco Products

Pte Ltd business units and the closures of the New England

Laminates Co Inc and the Neltec Europe SAS business units

all described above and related to an asset impairment at the

Companys business unit in Singapore recorded by the Company

in the 2009 fiscal year were $6.3 million net of the recapture

of non-cash cumulative currency translation adjustments total

ing $4.0 million recognized by the Company in the 2009 fiscal

year fourth quarter relating to the closure of the Neltec Europe

SAS business unit

During the 2007 fiscal year the Company recorded pre

tax charge of $1.3 million in connection with the termination of

an insurance arrangement with Jerry Shore the Companys

founder and former Chairman President and Chief Executive

Officer and recognized $0.5 million tax benefit relating to this

insurance termination charge The termination of the insurance

arrangement involved payment of $1.3 million by the Company

to Mr Shore in January 2007 which resulted in net cash cost

to the Company of $0.7 million after the Companys receipt of

portion of the cash surrender value of the insurance policies

During the 2007 fiscal year the Company also recognized tax

benefit of $3.5million relating to the elimination of certain valu

ation allowances previously established relating to deferred tax
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assets in the United States and tax benefit of $1.4 million

relating to the elimination of reserves no longer required as the

result of the completion of tax audit

Fiscal Year 2009 Compared with Fiscal Year 2008

The Companys total net sales worldwide and its total net sales

of printed circuit materials declined while its total net sales of

its advanced composite materials and parts increased in the

fiscal year ended March 2009 compared to the fiscal year

ended March 2008 as result of declines in net sales of

printed circuit materials in North America Europe and Asia

The reduced sales in the 2009 fiscal year resulted in signifi

cantly lower gross profit and gross profit margin in the 2009

fiscal year than in the 2008 fiscal year following slight

improvement in the Companys gross profit margin in the
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The Companys gross profit in the 2009 fiscal year was

substantially lower than the gross profit in the prior fiscal year

primarily as result of reduced total sales of printed circuit

materials products which were partially offset by higher per

centages of sales by the Company of its higher margin high

performance printed circuit materials products and advanced

composite materials and parts and by the benefits resulting from

the restructuring of the Companys Neltec Europe SAS business

unit in the 2008 fiscal year and from the workforce reductions at

the Nelco Products Inc Neltec Inc and Nelco Products Pte

Ltd business units and the closures of the New England

Laminates Co Inc and Neltec Europe SAS business units in the

2009 fiscal year all described elsewhere in this Discussion

Sales of the Companys advanced composite materials and

parts increased during the 2009 fiscal year primarily as result
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of sales of the Companys advanced composite parts as

result of the Companys acquisition of the advanced compos

ites parts manufacturing business of Nova Composites in

Lynnwood Washington in the 2009 fiscal year first quarter

Sales of advanced composite materials and parts were 13%

of the Companys total net sales worldwide in the 2009 fiscal

year compared to 9% in the 2008 fiscal year

The Companys earnings in the 2009 fiscal year were

enhanced by tax benefit of $4.7 million recorded by the

Company in the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter related to the

elimination of certain valuation allowances resulting principally

from the closure of the Companys New England Laminates

Co Inc electronic materials business unit located in New-

burgh New York and by tax benefit of $1.2 million recorded

by the Company in the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter related to

one-time pre-tax charges also recorded by the Company in

such quarter for the aforementioned closure of the Companys

New England Laminates Co Inc business unit and the closure

of the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic materials

business unit located in Mirebeau France and for workforce

reduction and an asset impairment at the Companys Nelco

Products Pte Ltd electronic materials and advanced compos

ite materials business unit in Singapore Such benefits were

offset by the one-time pre-tax charges of $5.7 million recorded

by the Company in the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter related to

the aforementioned business unit closures workforce reduc

tion and asset impairment and one-time pre-tax charge of

$0.6 million recorded by the Company in the 2009 fiscal year

third quarter related to restructurings at certain of its North

American and European business units

The Companys net earnings in the 2009 fiscal year were

also significantly increased by discontinued operations benefit

of $16.5 million recorded by the Company in the 2009 fiscal

year fourth quarter related to the elimination of liability from

discontinued operations of the Companys Dielektra GmbH

subsidiary located in Germany

The Companys results of operations in the 2008 fiscal year

were slightly enhanced by tax benefit of $1.5 million recorded

by the Company in the 2008 fiscal year fourth quarter resulting

from the reduction of tax reserves in the United States related

to transfer pricing which was partially offset by charge of

$1.4 million recorded by the Company in the 2008 fiscal year

fourth quarter for employment termination benefits and other

expenses resulting from restructuring and workforce reduc

tion at the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic materials
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Results of Operations

The Companys total net sales worldwide for the fiscal year

ended March 2009 declined 17% to $200.1 million from

$241.9 million for the fiscal year ended March 2008 The

decline in net sales was the result of decreased sales of the

Companys printed circuit materials in North America Europe

and Asia which were only partially offset by increased sales of

the Companys high performance printed circuit materials and

advanced composite materials and parts

The Companys foreign sales were $96.3 million or 48% of

the Companys total net sales worldwide during the 2009

fiscal year compared with $120.9 million of sales or 50% of

total net sales worldwide during the 2008 fiscal year and 47%

of total net sales worldwide during the 2007 fiscal year The
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Companys foreign sales during the 2009 fiscal year decreased

20% from the 2008 fiscal year primarily as result of decreases

in sales in Europe and Asia

For the fiscal year ended March 2009 the Companys

sales in North America Asia and Europe were 52% 37% and

11% respectively of the Companys total net sales worldwide

compared with 50% 37% and 13% respectively for the fiscal

year ended March 2008 The Companys sales in Asia

declined 19% its sales in North America declined 14% and its

sales in Europe declined 25% in the 2009 fiscal year compared

to the 2008 fiscal year

The overall gross profit as percentage of net sales for the

Companys worldwide operations declined to 21.7% during the

2009 fiscal year compared to 25.8% during the 2008 fiscal

year The deterioration in the gross profit margin was attrib

utable primarily to reduced sales volumes which were only

partially offset by higher percentages of sales of higher margin

high performance printed circuit materials products and

advanced composite materials and parts and by the benefits

resulting from the restructurings of the Companys Neltec

Europe SAS and Neltec SA business units in the 2008 fiscal

year and from the workforce reductions at the Nelco Products

Inc Neltec Inc and Nelco Products Pte Ltd business units

and the closures of the New England Laminates Co Inc and

Neltec Europe SAS business units in the 2009 fiscal year all

described elsewhere in this Discussion

During the fiscal year ended March 2009 the Companys

total net sales worldwide of high temperature printed circuit

materials which included high performance materials non-FR4

printed circuit materials were 100% of the Companys total

net sales worldwide of printed circuit materials compared with

99% for last fiscal year

The Companys high temperature printed circuit materials

include its high performance materials non-FR4 printed circuit

materials which consist of high-speed low-loss materials

for digital and RF/microwave applications requiring lead-free

compatibility and high bandwidth signal integrity bismalimide

triazine BT materials polyimides for applications that

demand extremely high thermal performance cyanate esters

and PTFE materials for RF/microwave systems that operate at

frequencies up to 77GHz

During the fiscal year ended March 2009 the Companys

total net sales worldwide of high performance printed circuit

materials non-FR4 printed circuit materials were 61 of the

Companys total net sales worldwide of printed circuit materi

als compared with 52% for last fiscal year

The Companys cost of sales decreased by 13% in the 2009

fiscal year from the 2008 fiscal year as result of lower sales

and lower production volumes in the 2009 fiscal year than in

the 2008 fiscal year However the Companys cost of sales as

percentage of net sales increased in the 2009 fiscal year

compared to the prior year resulting in gross profit margin

percentage decline which was attributable to lower sales

volumes in the 2009 fiscal year and the impact of currency

translation on costs incurred in Singapore dollars and increases

in utility costs in the 2009 fiscal year partially offset by higher

percentages of sales of higher margin high performance

printed circuit materials and advanced composite materials

products in the 2009 fiscal year

Selling general and administrative expenses decreased by

$2.4 million or by 9% during the 2009 fiscal year compared

to the 2008 fiscal year but these expenses measured as

percentage of sales were 12.4% during the 2009 fiscal year

compared to 11.2% during the 2008 fiscal year The higher

percentage in the 2009 fiscal year was the result of lower sales

in such year Selling general and administrative expenses

included $1.2 million for the 2009 fiscal year for stock option

expenses compared to $1.4 million for the 2008 fiscal year

which the Company recorded pursuant to Statement of Finan

cial Accounting Standards 123R
In the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter the Company recorded

one-time pre-tax charges of $5.7 million related to the closure

of the Companys New England Laminates Co Inc electronic

materials business unit located in Newburgh New York and

the closure of the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic

materials business unit located in Mirebeau France and related

to workforce reduction and an asset impairment at the

Companys Nelco Products Pte Ltd electronic materials and

advanced composite materials business unit in Singapore and

recognized tax benefits of $1.2 million related to these charges

and tax benefit of $4.7 million related to the elimination of

valuation allowances resulting principally from the aforemen

tioned closure of the Companys New England Laminates Co
Inc business unit In the 2009 fiscal year third quarter the

Company recorded pre-tax charge of $0.6 million related to

the restructurings at certain of its North American and European

business units

During the 2008 fiscal year the Company recorded charge

of $1.4 million for employment termination benefits and other

expenses resulting from the restructuring and workforce reduc

tion at the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic materials

business unit located in Mirebeau France and tax benefit of
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$1.5 million resulting from the reduction of tax reserves in the

United States related to transfer pricing

For the reasons set forth above the Companys earnings

from continuing operations for the 2009 fiscal year including

the charges described above relating to the facility closures

and asset impairment and the restructurings at certain of the

Companys North American and European business units and

the tax benefits described above relating to the facility closure

and asset impairment charges and to the elimination of valua

tion allowances were $12.4 million compared to earnings from

continuing operations for the 2008 fiscal year including the

charge described above for the restructuring and workforce

reduction at the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic

materials business unit and the tax benefit relating to the reduc

tion of tax reserves of $33.9 million The net impacts of the

charges and tax benefits described above were to decrease

earnings from continuing operations by $6.3 million for the

2009 fiscal year and to decrease earnings from continuing

operations by $1.4 million for the 2008 fiscal year

Interest and other income net principally investment

income declined 29% to $6.6 million for the 2009 fiscal year

from $9.4 million for the 2008 fiscal year The decline in

investment income was attributable to lower prevailing interest

rates partially offset by higher levels of cash available for

investment during the 2009 fiscal year than during the 2008

fiscal year The Companys investments were primarily in short-

term instruments and money market funds The Company

incurred no interest expense during the 2009 2008 or 2007

fiscal years See Liquidity and Capital Resources elsewhere

in this Discussion

The Companys effective income tax rate was 2.6% for the

2009 fiscal year compared to 19.9% for the 2008 fiscal year

The Companys effective income tax rate for continuing opera

tions excluding the tax benefits and the charges described

above for the 2009 fiscal year was 25.4% compared to 22.7%

for the 2008 fiscal year

The Companys net earnings from continuing operations for

the 2009 fiscal year including the charges and tax benefits

described above were $18.5 million compared to net earnings

from continuing operations for the 2008 fiscal year including

the charge and tax benefit described above of $34.7 million

The net impacts of the charges and tax benefits described

above were to increase net earnings from continuing opera

tions by $0.3 million for the 2009 fiscal year and to decrease

net earnings from continuing operations by $0.1 million for the

2008 fiscal year

In the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter the Company also

recorded discontinued operations benefit of $16.5 million

related to the elimination of liability from discontinued opera

tions of its Dielektra GmbH subsidiary located in Germany

The Companys net earnings for the 2009 fiscal year includ

ing the charges and tax benefits described above and the

discontinued operations benefit described above were $35.0

million compared to net earnings for the 2008 fiscal year

including the charge and tax benefit described above of $34.7

million The net impacts of the charges and tax benefits

described above and the discontinued operations benefit

described above were to increase net earnings by $16.8 million

for the 2009 fiscal year and to increase net earnings by $0.1 mil

lion for the 2008 fiscal year

Basic and diluted earnings per share including the charges

and tax benefits described above and the discontinued opera

tions benefit described above were $1.71 per share for the

2009 fiscal year compared to basic and diluted earnings per

share of $1.71 and $1.70 per share respectively including the

charge and tax benefit described above for the 2008 fiscal

year The net impacts of the charges and tax benefits described

above were to increase the basic and diluted earnings per share

by $0.81 for the 2009 fiscal year

Fiscal Year 2008 Compared with Fiscal Year 2007

The Companys total net sales worldwide and its total net sales

of printed circuit materials declined while its sales of its

advanced composite materials increased in the fiscal year

ended March 2008 compared to the fiscal year ended

February 25 2007 following increases in total net sales world

wide in the 2007 fiscal year compared to the 2006 fiscal year

The reduced sales in the 2008 fiscal year resulted in

slightly lower gross profit in the 2008 fiscal year than in the

2007 fiscal year although the Company experienced slight

improvement in the Companys gross profit margin in the 2008

fiscal year following substantial improvements in the 2007 fis

cal year compared to the 2006 fiscal year and in the 2006 fiscal

year compared to the 2005 fiscal year

The Companys gross profit in the 2008 fiscal year was lower

than its gross profit in the prior fiscal year primarily as result

of reduced total sales of printed circuit materials products

which were less than offset by higher percentages of sales by

the Company of its higher margin high performance printed

circuit materials products and higher percentage of sales by

the Companys operations in Singapore
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Sales of the Companys advanced composite materials prod

ucts increased during the 2008 fiscal year primarily as result

of the strength of the aerospace markets for advanced com

posite materials Sales of advanced composite materials were

9% of the Companys total net sales worldwide in the 2008

fiscal year and 8% of the Companys total net sales worldwide

in the 2007 fiscal year

The Companys results of operations in the 2008 fiscal year

were slightly enhanced by tax benefit of $1.5 million recorded

by the Company in the 2008 fiscal year fourth quarter resulting

from the reduction of tax reserves in the United States related

to transfer pricing which was partially offset by charge of

$1.4 million recorded by the Company in the 2008 fiscal year

fourth quarter for employment termination benefits and other

expenses resulting from restructuring and workforce reduc

tion at the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic materials

business unit located in Mirebeau France

The Companys results of operations in the 2007 fiscal year

were enhanced by the tax benefit of $0.7 million recorded by

the Company for the recognition of tax credits resulting from

operating losses sustained in prior years in France and by the

tax benefits of $3.5 million relating to the elimination of certain

valuation allowances previously established related to deferred

tax assets in the United States $1.4 million relating to the elimi

nation of reserves no longer required as the result of the com

pletion of tax audit and $0.5 million relating to the termination

of life insurance agreement with Jerry Shore the Companys

founder and former Chairman President and Chief Executive

Officer which benefits were partially offset by pre-tax charge

of $1.3 million relating to the termination of the insurance agree

ment with Jerry Shore

Results of Operations

The Companys total net sales worldwide for the fiscal year

ended March 2008 decreased 6% to $241.9 million from

$257.4 million for the fiscal year ended February 25 2007

The decrease in net sales was primarily the result of decreased

sales of the Companys printed circuit materials products in

North America and Europe which were only partially offset by

increased sales of the Companys printed circuit materials

products in Asia and by increased sales of the Companys

high performance printed circuit materials and advanced com

posite materials

The Companys foreign sales were $120.9 million or 50% of

the Companys total net sales worldwide during the 2008

fiscal year compared with $119.5 million of sales or 47% of

total net sales worldwide during the 2007 fiscal year and 44%
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of total net sales worldwide during the 2006 fiscal year The

Companys foreign sales during the 2008 fiscal year increased

1% from the 2007 fiscal year primarily as result of increases

in sales by the Companys operations in Asia

For the fiscal year ended March 2008 the Companys

sales in North America Asia and Europe were 50% 37% and

13% respectively of the Companys total net sales worldwide

compared with 54% 32% and 14% respectively for the fiscal

year ended February 25 2007 The Companys sales in Asia

increased 10% in the 2008 fiscal year over the 2007 fiscal year

while its sales in North America decreased 12% and its sales

in Europe decreased 18% in the 2008 fiscal year compared to

the 2007 fiscal year

The overall gross profit as percentage of net sales for the

Companys worldwide operations improved to 25.8% during

the 2008 fiscal year compared with 24.9% during the 2007 fis

cal year The improvement in the gross profit margin was attrib

utable to higher percentages of sales of higher margin high

performance printed circuit materials and higher percentage

of sales by the Companys operations in Singapore partially

offset by higher copper foil costs in the 2008 fiscal year than in

the 2007 fiscal year and by lower total sales volumes in the

2008 fiscal year

During the fiscal year ended March 2008 the Companys

total net sales worldwide of high temperature printed circuit

materials which included high performance materials non-FR4

printed circuit materials were 99% of the Companys total net

sales worldwide of printed circuit materials compared with

97% for the 2007 fiscal year

The Companys high temperature printed circuit materials

include its high performance materials non-FR4 printed circuit

materials which consist of high-speed low-loss materials

for digital and RF/microwave applications requiring lead-free

compatibility and high bandwidth signal integrity BT materials

polyimides for applications that demand extremely high ther

mal performance cyanate esters and PTFE materials for RF/

microwave systems that operate at frequencies up to 77GHz

During the fiscal year ended March 2008 the Companys

total net sales worldwide of high performance printed circuit

materials non-FR4 printed circuit materials were 52% of the

Companys total net sales worldwide of printed circuit materi

als compared with 42% for the 2007 fiscal year

The Companys cost of sales declined by 7% in the 2008

fiscal year from the 2007 fiscal year as result of lower sales

and lower production volumes in the 2008 fiscal year than in

the 2007 fiscal year The Companys cost of sales as percent

age of net sales also decreased slightly in the 2008 fiscal year
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compared to the prior year resulting in slight gross profit

percentage improvement which was attributable to higher

percentages of sales of higher margin high performance

printed circuit materials and higher percentage of sales by the

Companys operations in Singapore

Selling general and administrative expenses increased by

$0.5 million or by 2% during the 2008 fiscal year compared

with the 2007 fiscal year and these expenses measured as

percentage of sales were 11.2% during the 2008 fiscal

year compared with 10.4% during the 2007 fiscal year Such

expenses were higher in the 2008 fiscal year primarily as

result of the out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Company

related to its due diligence investigation of Columbia Aircraft

Manufacturing Corporation discussed below and the additional

week in the 53-week 2008 fiscal year compared to the 52-week
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was the result of lower sales in such year and the aforemen

tioned out-of-pocket expenses In addition selling general and

administrative expenses in the 2007 fiscal year were reduced

by reduction in the fourth quarter of restructuring reserves

established in prior years for the Companys operations in

Europe Selling general and administrative expenses included

$1.4 million for the 2008 fiscal year for stock option expenses

compared to $1.3 million for the 2007 fiscal year which

the Company recorded pursuant to Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards 123R
In the 2008 fiscal year fourth quarter the Company recorded

charge of $1.4 million for employment termination benefits

and other expenses resulting from the restructuring and work-

force reduction at the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic

materials business unit located in Mirebeau France and tax
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reserves in the United States related to transfer pricing

During the 2008 fiscal year third quarter the Company

incurred approximately $0.5 million in out-of-pocket expenses

related to its extensive due diligence investigation of Columbia

Aircraft Manufacturing Corporation Columbia located in

Bend Oregon in preparation for its participation in the bidding

for certain of the assets and business of Columbia in an auction

conducted in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District

of Oregon in Portland Oregon on November 27 2007 The

Company had submitted an initial bid for certain of the assets

and business of Columbia on November 20 2007 after con

ducting extensive due diligence at Columbia in Bend Oregon

and elsewhere The Company participated in the auction in the

Bankruptcy Court in Portland on November 27 2007 but chose

to discontinue its participation in the auction bidding process

In the 2007 fiscal year fourth quarter the Company recorded

tax benefit of $0.7 million relating to the recognition of tax

credits resulting from operating losses sustained in prior years

in France In the 2007 fiscal year second quarter the Company

recorded pre-tax charge of $1.3 million in connection with the

termination of life insurance arrangement with Jerry Shore

the Companys founder and former Chairman President and

Chief Executive Officer and recognized tax benefit of $0.5

million relating to this insurance termination charge The termi

nation of the insurance arrangement involved payment of

$1.3 million by the Company to Mr Shore in January 2007

which resulted in net cash cost to the Company of $0.7 mil

lion after the Companys receipt of portion of the cash sur

render value of the insurance policies During the 2007 fiscal

year second quarter the Company also recognized tax benefit

of $3.5 million relating to the elimination of certain valuation

allowances previously established relating to deferred tax

assets in the United States and tax benefit of $1.4 million

relating to the elimination of reserves no longer required as the

result of the completion of tax audit

For the reasons set forth above the Companys earnings

from continuing operations for the 2008 fiscal year including

the charge described above for employment termination bene

fits and other expenses resulting from the workforce reduction

in France and the tax benefit described above relating to the

reduction of tax reserves were $33.9 million and earnings

from continuing operations for the 2007 fiscal year including

the charge described above relating to the termination of the

life insurance arrangement were $36.1 million The net impacts
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decrease earnings from continuing operations by $1.4 million

for the 2008 fiscal year and to decrease earnings from continu

ing operations by $1.3 million for the 2007 fiscal year

Interest and other income net principally investment income

increased 17% to $9.4 million for the 2008 fiscal year from

$8.0 million for the 2007 fiscal year The increase in investment

income was attributable to higher prevailing interest rates and

larger amounts of cash available for investment during the 2008

fiscal year than during the 2007 fiscal year The Companys

investments were primarily in short-term taxable instruments

The Company incurred no interest expense during the 2008

2007 or 2006 fiscal years See Liquidity and Capital Resources

elsewhere in this Discussion
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The Companys effective income tax rate was 19.9% for as it was at March 2008 the amounts of many of the

the 2008 fiscal year compared to 9.9% for the 2007 fiscal year

The 2008 fiscal year tax rate included the tax benefit relating to

the reduction of tax reserves and the 2007 fiscal year tax rate

included tax benefits relating to the recognition of tax credits

in France the termination of life insurance agreement the

elimination of certain valuation allowances previously estab

lished related to deferred tax assets in the United States and

the elimination of reserves no longer required as the result of

the completion of tax audit The Companys effective income

tax rate for continuing operations excluding the tax benefits

and the charges described above for the 2008 fiscal year was

22.7% compared to 23.0% for the 2007 fiscal year

The Companys net earnings for the 2008 fiscal year includ

ing the tax benefit described above relating to the reduction of

tax reserves and the charge described above for employment

termination benefits and other expenses resulting from the

workforce reduction in France were $34.7 million compared to

net earnings of $39.8 million for the 2007 fiscal year including

the tax benefits described above relating to the recognition

of tax credits in France the termination of the life insurance

arrangement the elimination of certain valuation allowances

and the elimination of reserves no longer required and the

charge described above relating to the termination of the life

insurance arrangement The net impacts of the charges and tax

benefits described above were to increase net earnings by $4.8

million for the 2007 fiscal year

Basic and diluted earnings per share including the tax benefit

and charge described above were $1.71 and $1.70 per share

respectively for the 2008 fiscal year and basic and diluted

earnings per share including the charge and tax benefits

described above were $1.97 and $1.96 per share respectively

for the 2007 fiscal year The net impacts of the charges and tax

benefits described above were to increase the basic earnings

per share by $0.01 for the 2008 fiscal year and to increase the

basic and diluted earnings per share by $0.23 and $0.24

respectively for the 2007 fiscal year

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At March 2009 the Companys cash and temporary invest

ments consisting of marketable securities were $225.3 mil

lion compared to $214.0 million at March 2008 the end

of the Companys 2008 fiscal year The Companys working

capital which includes cash and temporary investments

was $239.6 million at March 2009 compared with $239.1

million at March 2008 Although the Companys working

capital at March 2009 was essentially the same amount
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components of its working capital changed substantially from

March 2008 to March 2009 The 5% increase in cash and

temporary investments at March 2009 compared with March

2008 was the result of cash provided by operating activities

At March 2009 accounts receivable were 40% lower

accounts payable were 34% lower and inventories were 24%

lower than at March 2008 principally as result of lower pro
duction and sales volumes during the period ended March

2009 compared to the period ended March 2008 The 14%

decline in accrued liabilities at March 2009 compared to

March 2008 was primarily the result of decreased accruals

for compensation programs environmental matters and profes

sional fees Income taxes payable were 25% lower at March

2009 than at March 2008 primarily as result of payments

made during the 2009 fiscal year and as result of lower tax

able income

The Companys current ratio the ratio of current assets to

current liabilities was 10.9 to at March 2009 compared

with 8.5 to at March 2008

During the 2009 fiscal year net earnings from the Companys

operations and net increase in working capital items and

the discontinued operations benefit related to the elimination

of liability from discontinued operations of the Companys

Dielektra GmbH subsidiary in Germany resulted in $33.6 mil

lion of cash provided by operating activities This increase in

cash provided by operating activities was partially offset by

$6.5 million of dividends paid during the 2009 fiscal year Cash

dividends paid were $37.0 million including special cash

dividend of $30.5 million during the 2008 fiscal year and

$26.6 million including special cash dividend of $20.1 million

during the 2007 fiscal year Net earnings in the 2008 fiscal

year resulted in $41.9 million of cash provided by operating

activities

Net expenditures for property plant and equipment were

$12.2 million $4.4 million and $3.9 million in the 2009 2008

and 2007 fiscal years respectively

In the first quarter of the Companys 2009 fiscal year

the Companys wholly owned subsidiary Park Aerospace

Structures Corp acquired substantially all the assets and busi

ness of Nova Composites Inc manufacturer of aircraft com
posite parts and the tooling for such parts located in Lynnwood

Washington for cash purchase price of $4.5 million paid

at the closing of the acquisition and up to an additional $5.5

million payable over five years depending on the achievement

of specified earn-out objectives
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continued

During the 2009 fiscal year the Company expended approxi

mately $10.2 million for the construction of its new devel

opment and manufacturing facility in Newton Kansas to

produce advanced composite materials and for equipment for

such facility

At March 2009 and March 2008 the Company had no

long-term debt

The Company believes its financial resources will be suf

ficient for the foreseeable future to provide for continued

investment in working capital and property plant and equip

ment and for general corporate purposes Such resources

would also be available for purchases of the Companys com

mon stock appropriate acquisitions and other expansions of

the Companys business

The Company is not aware of any circumstances or events

that are reasonably likely to occur that could materially affect

its liquidity

The Companys contractual obligations and other commercial

commitments to make future payments under contracts such

as lease agreements consist only of the operating lease

commitments commitments to purchase equipment for the

Companys new development and manufacturing facility in

Newton Kansas described in Note 15 of the Notes to Con

solidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this

Report and the Companys obligation to pay up to an additional

$5.5 million over five years in connection with the acquistion of

the assets and business of Nova Composites Inc described

above The Company has no long-term debt capital lease obli

gations unconditional purchase obligations or other long-term

obligations standby letters of credit guarantees standby repur

chase obligations or other commercial commitments or con

tingent commitments otie than two standby letters of credit

in the total amount of $1.45 million to secure the Companys

obligations under its workers compensation insurance program

and certain limited energy purchase contracts intended to

protect the Company from increased utilities costs

As of March 2009 the Companys significant contractual

obligations including payments due by fiscal year were as

follows

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Companys liquidity is not dependent on the use of and

the Company is not engaged in any off-balance sheet financing

arrangements such as securitization of receivables or obtaining

access to assets through special purpose entities

Environmentai Matters

The Company is subject to various Federal state and local

government requirements relating to the protection of the

environment The Company believes that as general matter

its policies practices and procedures are properly designed

to prevent unreasonable risk of environmental damage and that

its handling manufacture use and disposal of hazardous or

toxic substances are in accord with environmental laws and

regulations However mainly because of past operations and

operations of predecessor companies which were generally in

compliance with applicable laws at the time of the operations

in question the Company like other companies engaged in

similar businesses is party to claims by government agencies

and third parties and has incurred remedial response and volun

tary cleanup costs associated with environmental matters

Additional claims and costs involving past environmental mat

ters may continue to arise in the future It is the Companys

policy to record appropriate liabilities for such matters when

remedial efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably

estimated

In the 2009 2008 and 2007 fiscal years the Company

charged approximately $0.7 million $0.2 million and $0.0

million respectively against pre-tax income for remedial

response and voluntary cleanup costs including legal fees

While annual expenditures have generally been constant from

year to year and may increase overtime the Company expects

it will be able to fund such expenditures from cash flow from

operations The timing of expenditures depends on number

of factors including regulatory approval of cleanup projects

remedial techniques to be utilized and agreements with other

parties At March 2009 the amount recorded in accrued lia

bilities for environmental matters was $0.8 million compared

with $2.1 million of liabilities from discontinued operations for

environmental matters related to Dielektra and $1.6 million for

other environmental matters at March 2008

Management does not expect that environmental matters

will have material adverse effect on the liquidity capital

resources business consolidated results of operations or

consolidated financial position of the Company See Note 16

of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included

Contractual Obligations

Amounts in thousands

2011 2013 2OlSand

Total 2010 2012 2014 thereafter

Operating lease

obligations

Equipment purchase

obligations

Total

8754 $2335 $3294 $1645 $1480

3483 3483

$12237 $5818 $3294 $1645 $1480
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in this Report for discussion of the Companys contingencies

including those related to environmental matters

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In response to financial reporting release FR-60Cautionary

Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting

Policies issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission

in December 2001 the following information is provided regard

ing critical accounting policies that are important to the

Consolidated Financial Statements and that entail to sig

nificant extent the use of estimates assumptions and the

application of managements judgment

General

The Companys discussion and analysis of its financial condi

tion and results of operations are based upon the Companys

Consolidated Financial Statements which have been prepared

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States The preparation of these financial statements

requires the Company to make estimates assumptions and

judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities

revenues and expenses and the related disclosure of contin

gent liabilities On an ongoing basis the Company evaluates its

estimates including those related to sales allowances accounts

receivable allowances for doubtful accounts inventories valu

ation of long-lived assets income taxes restructurings con

tingencies and litigation and pensions and other employee

benefit programs The Company bases its estimates on his

torical experience and on various other assumptions that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances the

results of which form the basis for making judgments about

the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from

these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

The Company believes the following critical accounting poli

cies affect its more significant judgments and estimates used

in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements

Revenue Recognition

Sales revenue is recognized at the time title to product is trans

ferred to customer All material sales transactions are for the

shipment of manufactured prepreg and laminate products and

advanced composite materials The Company ships its prod

ucts to customers based upon firm orders with fixed selling

prices when collection is reasonably assured

PARK
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Sales Allowances

The Company provides for the estimated costs of sales allow

ances at the time such costs can be reasonably estimated The

Companys products are made to customer specifications and

tested for adherence to such specifications before shipment

to customers There are no future performance requirements

other than the products meeting the agreed specifications

The Companys bases for providing sales allowances for returns

are known situations in which products may have failed due to

manufacturing defects in the products supplied by the Company

The Company is focused on manufacturing the highest quality

printed circuit materials and advanced composite materials and

parts possible and employs stringent manufacturing process

controls and works with raw material suppliers who have dedi

cated themselves to complying with the Companys specifica

tions and technical requirements The amounts of returns and

allowances resulting from defective or damaged products have

been approximately 1.0% of sales for each of the Companys

last three fiscal years

Accounts Receivable

The majority of the Companys accounts receivable are due

from purchasers of the Companys printed circuit materials

Credit is extended based on evaluation of customers finan

cial condition and generally collateral is not required Accounts

receivable are due within established payment terms and are

stated at amounts due from customers net of an allowance for

doubtful accounts Accounts outstanding longer than estab

lished payment terms are considered past due The Company

determines its allowance by considering number of factors

including the length of time accounts receivable are past due

the Companys previous loss history the customers current

ability to pay its obligation to the Company and the condition of

the general economy and the industry as whole The Company

writes off accounts receivable when they become uncollect

ible and payments subsequently received on such receivables

are credited to the allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for

estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers

to make required payments If the financial condition of the

Companys customers were to deteriorate resulting in an

impairment of their ability to make payments additional allow

ances may be required
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost first-in first-out

method or market The Company writes down its inventory for

estimated obsolescence or unmarketability based upon the age

of the inventory and assumptions about future demand for the

Companys products and market conditions

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the impairment of long-lived assets

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable Important

factors that could trigger an impairment review include but are

not limited to significant negative industry or economic trends

and significant changes in the use of the Companys assets or

strategy of the overall business

Income Taxes

Carrying value of the Companys net deferred tax assets

assumes that the Company will be able to generate sufficient

future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions based on esti

mates and assumptions If these estimates and assumptions

change in the future the Company may be required to record

additional valuation allowances against its deferred tax assets

resulting in additional income tax expense in the Companys

consolidated statement of operations or conversely to further

reduce the existing valuation allowance resulting in less income

tax expense Management evaluates the realizability of the

deferred tax assets quarterly and assesses the need for addi

tional valuation allowances quarterly

Restructurings

The Company recorded one-time pre-tax charges of $5.7 mil

lion in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended March 2009

related to the closure of the Companys New England Laminates

Co Inc electronic materials business unit located in Newburgh

New York and the closure of the Companys Neltec Europe SAS

electronic materials business unit located in Mirebeau France

and related to workforce reduction and an asset impairment

at the Companys Nelco Products Pte Ltd electronic materials

and advanced composite materials business unit in Singapore

In the 2009 fiscal year third quarter the Company recorded

one-time pre-tax charge of $0.6 million related to restructurings

at certain of its North American and European business units

The Company recorded one-time pre-tax charge of $1.4 mil

lion in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended March 2008

in connection with restructuring and workforce reduction at

its Neltec Europe SAS business unit Such restructurings and

workforce reductions are described in Note 12 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements in this Report and elsewhere

in this Discussion

Contingencies

The Company is subject to small number of proceedings law

suits and other claims related to environmental employment

product and other matters The Company is required to assess

the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes in these

matters as well as potential ranges of probable losses

determination of the amount of reserves required if any for

these contingencies is made after careful analysis of each

individual issue The required reserves may change in the future

due to new developments in each matter or changes in

approach such as change in settlement strategy in dealing

with these matters

The Company is obligated to pay up to an additional $5.5 mil

lion over five years depending on the achievement of specified

earn-out objectives in connection with the acquisition by the

Companys wholly owned subsidiary Park Aerospace Structures

Corp of substantially all the assets and business of Nova

Composites Inc manufacturer of composite parts and the

tooling for such parts located in Lynnwood Washington in

addition to cash purchase price of $4.5 million paid at the

closing of the acquisition on April 2008

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Programs

The Companys obligations for workers compensation claims

are effectively self-insured although the Company maintains

individual and aggregate stop-loss insurance coverage for such

claims The Company accrues its workers compensation lia

bility
based on estimates of the total exposure of known claims

using historical experience and projected loss development

factors less amounts previously paid out

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have non-

contributory profit sharing retirement plan covering their regular

full-time employees In addition the Companys subsidiaries

have various bonus and incentive compensation programs

some of which are determined at managements discretion

The Companys reserves associated with these self-insured

liabilities and benefit programs are reviewed by management

for adequacy at the end of each reporting period
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About

Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risks for changes in foreign

currency exchange rates and interest rates The Companys

primary foreign currency exchange exposure relates to the

translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries

using currencies other than the U.S dollar as their functional

currency The Company does not believe that 10% fluctuation

in foreign exchange rates would have had material impact

on its consolidated results of operations or financial position

The exposure to market risks for changes in interest rates

relates to the Companys short-term investment portfolio This

PARK
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investment portfolio is managed in accordance with guidelines

issued by the Company These guidelines are designed to

establish high quality fixed income portfolio of government

and highly rated corporate debt securities with maximum

weighted maturity of less than one year The Company does

not use derivative financial instruments in its investment port

folio Based on the average anticipated maturity of the invest

ment portfolio at the end of the 2009 fiscal year 10% increase

in short-term interest rates would not have had material

impact on the consolidated results of operations or financial

position of the Company
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholders and Board of Directors of

Park Electrochemical Corp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of Park Electrochemical Corp and subsidiaries the

Company as of March 2009 and March 2008 and the

related consolidated statements of operations stockholders

equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended March 2009 These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibil

ity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based

on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the con

solidated financial statements are free of material misstate

ment An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial state

ment presentation We believe that our audits provide reason

able basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred

to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Park Electrochemical Corp and subsidiaries as of

March 2009 and March 2008 and the consolidated results

of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for each of

the three years in the period ended March 2009 in confor

mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America

We also have audited in accordance with the standards

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Park Electrochemical Corp and subsidiaries internal

control over financial reporting as of March 2009 based on

criteria established in Internal Controlintegrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated May 13

2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

New York New York

May 13 2009
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Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

In thousands except share and per share amounts

March March

2009 2008

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Marketable securities Note

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts of $687 and $750 respectively

Inventories Note

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation and amortization Note

Other assets Note

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities Note

Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities

Deferred income taxes Note

Other liabilities

Liabilities from discontinued operations Note 11

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies Notes 15 and 16

Stockholders equity Note

Preferred stock $1 par value per shareauthorized 500000 shares issued none

Common stock $10 par value per shareauthorized 60000000 shares issued 20470661 and

20369986 shares respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Less treasury stock at cost 145 and 23106 shares respectively

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity
_____________________

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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40790

184504

22433

10677

5527

$100159

113819

37466

14049

5546

263931 271039

48777 47188

14871 9180

$327579 $327407

8480 12828

11425 13314

4381 5837

24286 31 979

3927 4851

3657 4224

17181

31870 58235

2047 2037

146934 143267

145107 116646

1622 7436

295710 269386

214

295709 269172

$327579 $327407
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Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations
In thousands except per share amounts

Fiscal Year Ended

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling general and administrative expenses

Insurance arrangement termination charge Note 13

Realignment and severance charges Note 12

Asset impairment charge

Earnings from continuing operations

Interest and other income net

Earnings before income taxes

Income tax provision Note

Net earnings from continuing operations

Gain from discontinued operations Note 11

Net earnings

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Net earnings from continuing operations

Gain from discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share

Basic weighted average shares

Diluted earnings per share

Net earnings from continuing operations

Gain from discontinued operations

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted weighted average shares

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March March February 25

2009 2008 2007

$200062 $241852 $257377

156638 179398 193270

43424 62454 64107

24806 27159 26682

1316

2290 1362

3967

12361 33933 36109

6648 9361 8033

19009 43294 44142

495 8615 4351

18514 34679 39791

16486

35000 34679 39791

0.90 1.71 1.97

0.81

1.71 1.71 1.97

20441 20305 20175

0.90 1.70 1.96

0.81

1.71 1.70 1.96

AO Sc OCtALVOU Z.5JJ5Jt
17
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Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiades

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity
In thousands except share and per share amounts

Accumulated

Other

Common Stock
Retained Comprehensive

Shares Amount Earnings Income Loss

Balance February 26 2006

Net earnings $39791

Exchange rate changes 1684

Unrealized loss on marketable

securities 645

Stock option activity

Stock-based compensation

Tax benefit on exercise of options

Cash dividends $1.32 per share

Comprehensive income $42120

Balance February 25 2007

Net earnings $34679

Exchange rate changes 2217

Unrealized gain on marketable

securities 455

Stock option activity

Stock-based compensation

Tax benefit on exercise of options

Cash dividends $1.82 per share

Comprehensive income
__________________________________________________________________________

$37351

Balance March 2008

Net earnings $35000

Exchange rate changes 5659
Unrealized gain on marketable

securities 155
Stock option activity

Stock-based compensation

Tax benefit on exercise of options

Cash dividends $0.32 per share

Comprehensive income

Balance March 2009

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Additional

Paid-in

Capital

Treasury Stock

Shares Amount

Comprehensive

Income Loss

20369986 $2037 $137513 $105808

39791

687

1283

547

26638

$2435 255428 $2370

1684

645

80236 745

20369986 $2037 $140030 $118961 $4764 175192 $1625

34679

2217

455

1211 152086 1411

1392

634

36994

20369986 $2037 $143267 $116646 $7436 23106 214

35000

5659

155

100675 10 2056 22961 213

1231

380

6539

20470661 $2047 $146934 $145107 1622 145

$29186

29



Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In thousands

Fiscal Year Ended

March March February 25

2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Loss gain on sale of fixed assets

Stock-based compensation

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable

Provision for deferred income taxes

Gain from discontinued operations

Impairment of fixed assets

Non-cash restructuring

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Other assets and liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Income taxes payable __________________________________

Net cash provided by operating activities
____________________________________

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property plant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of property plant and equipment

Purchases of marketable securities

Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities

Business acquisition ______________________________________

Net cash used in investing activities
______________________________________

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Tax benefits from stock-based compensation
____________________________________

Net cash used in financing activities
______________________________________

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents before effect of exchange

rate changes

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
______________________________________

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year ______________________________________

Cash and cash equivalents end of year ____________________________________

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

35000 34679 39791

7707 8286 8992

74 18

1231 1392 1283

166 954

5409 812 899

16486

3967

3752

14683 2300 2092

3199 1375 210

583 3087 627

1026 1603 1302

4186 983 158

2028 209 6782

1890 473 4576

33649 41903 35788

12224 4525 4793

16 78 896

296252 165690 123592

224808 142535 126844

4728

88380 27602 645

6539 36994 26638

2280 2622 1432

380 634 547

3879 33738 24659

58610 19437 10484

759 545 540

59369 18892 11024

100159 119051 108027

40790 100159 119051
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Park Electrochemical Corp arid Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Three years
ended March 2009

In thousands except share per share and option amounts

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Park Electrochemical Corp Park through its subsidiaries

collectively the Company is global advanced materials

company which develops manufactures markets and sells

high-technology digital and RF/microwave printed circuit mate

rials principally for the telecommunications and internet infra

structure and high-end computing markets and advanced

composite materials and parts principally for the aerospace

markets

Principles of ConsolidationThe consolidated financial

statements include the accounts of Park and its subsidiaries

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have

been eliminated

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements

in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial state

ments and accompanying notes Actual results may differ from

those estimates

Accounting PeriodThe Companys fiscal year is the 52 or

53 week period ending the Sunday nearest to the last day of

February The 2009 2008 and 2007 fiscal years ended on

March 2009 March 2008 and February 25 2007 respec

tively Fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 consisted of 52 53

and 52 weeks respectively

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all

money market securities and investments with contractual

maturities at the date of purchase of 90 days or less to be cash

equivalents

Supplemental cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for

Income taxes paid net of refunds

Fiscal Year

2009 2008 2007

$5381 $9804 $11712

Marketable SecuritiesAll marketable securities are classi

fied as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value with the

unrealized gains and losses net of tax included in comprehen

sive income loss Realized gains and losses amortization of

premiums and discounts and interest and dividend income are

included in other income The cost of securities sold is based

on the specific identification method The Company has clas

sified any investment in auction rate securities for which

the underlying security had maturity greater than three

months as marketable securities The Company has not had

PARK
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any investment in auction rate securities since the 2008 fiscal

year third quarter

InventoriesInventories are stated at the lower of cost

first-in first-out method or market The Company writes

down its inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarket

ability based upon the age of the inventory and assumptions

about future demand for the Companys products and market

conditions

Revenue RecognitionSales revenue is recognized at the

time title is transferred to customer All material sales trans

actions are for the shipment of manufactured prepreg and lami

nate products and advanced composite materials The Company

ships its products to customers based upon firm orders with

fixed selling prices when collection is reasonably assured

Sales Allowances and Product WarrantiesThe Company

provides for the estimated costs of sales allowances at the

time such costs can be reasonably estimated The Companys

products are made to customer specifications and tested for

adherence to specifications before shipment to customers

There are no future performance requirements other than the

products meeting the agreed specifications The Companys

bases for providing sales allowances for returns are known situ

ations in which products may have failed due to manufacturing

defects in products supplied by the Company The Company is

focused on manufacturing the highest quality printed circuit

and advanced composite materials and parts possible and

employs stringent manufacturing process controls and works

with raw material suppliers who have dedicated themselves to

complying with the Companys specifications and technical

requirements The amounts of returns and allowances resulting

from defective or damaged products have been approximately

1.0% of sales for each of the Companys last three fiscal years

Accounts ReceivableThe majority of the Companys

accounts receivable are due from purchasers of the Companys

printed circuit materials Credit is extended based on evaluation

of customers financial condition and generally collateral is

not required Accounts receivable are due within established

payment terms and are stated at amounts due from customers

net of an allowance for doubtful accounts Accounts outstand

ing longer than established payment terms are considered past

due The Company determines its allowance by considering

number of factors including the length of time accounts receiv

able are past due the Companys previous loss history the

customers current ability to pay its obligation to the Company

and the condition of the general economy and the industry as
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Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Three years ended March 2009

In thousands except share per share and option amounts

whole The Company writes off accounts receivable when they

become uncollectible and payments subsequently received

on such receivables are credited to the allowance for doubtful

accounts

Allowance for Doubtful AccountsThe Company maintains

allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting

from the inability of its customers to make required payments

If the financial condition of the Companys customers were to

deteriorate resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments additional allowances may be required

Valuation of Long-Lived AssetsThe Company assesses

the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of

such assets may not be recoverable Important factors that

could trigger an impairment review include but are not limited

to significant negative industry or economic trends and signifi

cant changes in the use of the Companys assets or strategy of

the overall business

Intangible AssetsGoodwill is not amortized Other intan

gible assets are amortized over the useful lives of the assets

on straight line basis The Company tests for impairment

of intangible assets whenever events or changes in circum

stances indicate that the carrying value of such assets may not

be recoverable

Shipping CostsThe amounts paid by the Company to third-

party shippers for transporting products to customers which

are not reimbursed by customers are classified as selling

expenses The shipping costs included in selling general and

administrative expenses were approximately $3929 $4221

and $4417 for fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Property Plant and EquipmentProperty plant and equip

ment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation The

Company capitalizes additions improvements and major renew

als and expenses maintenance repairs and minor renewals as

incurred Depreciation and amortization are computed princi

pally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives

Machinery and equipment are generally depreciated over 10

years Building and leasehold improvements are depreciated

over 2530 years or the term of the lease if shorter

Income TaxesDeferred income taxes are provided for

temporary differences in the reporting of certain items primar

ily depreciation for income tax purposes as compared with

financial accounting purposes

United States U.S Federal income taxes have not been

provided on the undistributed earnings approximately $128000

March 2009 of the Companys foreign subsidiaries because

it is managements practice and intent to reinvest such earn

ings in the operations of such subsidiaries

Foreign Currency TranslationAssets and liabilities of for

eign subsidiaries using currencies other than the U.S dollar as

their functional currency are translated into U.S dollars at fiscal

year-end exchange rates and income and expense items are

translated at average exchange rates for the period Gains and

losses resulting from translation are recorded as currency trans

lation adjustments in comprehensive income

Stock-Based CompensationThe Company implemented

the disclosure provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards SFAS No 148 Accounting for Stock-Based

CompensationTransition and Disclosure in the fourth quar

ter of fiscal year 2003 Effective February 27 2006 the begin

ning of the Companys 2007 fiscal year the Company began

recording compensation expense associated with stock options

the only form of equity compensation issued by the Company

in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No 123R Share-Based Payment SFAS 123R The

Company recognizes such compensation expense on straight-

line basis over the four-year service period during which the

options become exercisable

Marketable Securities

The following is summary of available-for-sale securities

March 2009

U.S Treasury and other

government securities

U.S corporate debt

securities

Certificates of deposit

Total debt securities

March 2008

U.S Treasury and other

government securities

U.S corporate debt

securities

Certificates of deposit

Total debt securities

Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Gains Losses Fair Value

83 $166 $184504

39 47 30829

90 185 70390

12600

$129 $232 $113819

25

48

10

7975

166 40918

135611
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The gross realized gains on the sales of securities were $0

$1 and $43 for fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

and the gross realized losses were $0 $4 and $114 for fiscal

years 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

As of March 2008 the Company adopted SFAS No 157

Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 The adoption of

SFAS 157 did not have material effect on the Companys

Consolidated Financial Statements Under SFAS 157 fair values

of the investments are determined based on observable inputs

which are quoted market prices for identical assets in active

markets

The estimated fair values of the debt and marketable secu

rities at Marbh 2009 by contractual maturity are shown

below

Estimated Fair Value

Due in one year or less $173964

Due after one year through five years 10540

$184504

Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following

March March

2009 2008

Raw materials 5711 5923

Work-in-process 2110 3686

Finished goods 2561 3951

Manufacturing supplies 295 489

10677 14049

Property Plant and Equipment

March March

2009 2008

Land buildings and improvements

Machinery equipment furniture

and fixtures

Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization

Property plant and equipment are initially valued at cost

Depreciation and amortization expense relating to property

plant and equipment was $7707 $8286 and $8992 for fiscal

years 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively In the 2009 fiscal

year fourth quarter the Company recorded pre-tax impair

ment charge of $3967 for the write-off of construction costs

related to the installation of an advanced high-speed treater at

the Companys Nelco Products Pte Ltd electronic materials

business unit in Singapore

The Company has $950 of building and machinery and equip

ment which are held for sale at its Neltec Europe SAS business

unit in Mirebeau France and its New England Laminates Co
Inc business unit in Newburgh New York The Company has

stopped depreciating these assets and intends to sell the

machinery and equipment during the 2010 fiscal year and the

buildings during the 2010 or 2011 fiscal years The selling prices

are expected to equal or exceed the book values

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In the first quarter of the Companys 2009 fiscal year the

Companys wholly owned subsidiary Park Aerospace Structures

Corp acquired substantially all the assets and business of

Nova Composites Inc manufacturer of aircraft composite

parts and the tooling for such parts located in Lynnwood

Washington for cash purchase price of $4500 paid at the

closing of the acquisition and up to an additional $5500 pay

able over five years depending on the achievement of specified

earn-out objectives The Company is in the process of deter

mining the additional amount if any up to $1100 payable for

the first year The Company recorded $4351 of goodwill and

an intangible asset related to patent of $106 which will be

amortized over 15 years Other intangibles are amortized over

the useful lives of the assets

Goodwill

Other Intangibles

March March

2009 2008

$4463

PARK
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35496 36182

131731 137816

167227 173998

118450 126810

48777 47188

$4351

112
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Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Three years ended March 2009

In thousands except share per share and option amounts

Payroll and payroll related

Employee benefits

Workers compensation accrual

Environmental reserve Note 16

Restructuring accruals

Other

$11425 $13314

Income Taxes

The income tax benefit provision includes the following

Current

Federal

State and local

Foreign

Deferred

Federal

State and local

Foreign

2087 3388 2319

224 698 349

3593 5341 3445

5904 9427 61 13

4354 1015 664

583 100 554

472 303 544

5409 812 1762

495 8615 4351

During the fourth quarter of the 2009 fiscal year the Company

recorded tax benefit of $4677 from the elimination of certain

valuation allowances resulting principaHy from the closure of

the Companys New England Laminates Co Inc business unit

located in Newburgh New York

During the fourth quarter of the 2008 fiscal year the Company

recognized tax benefit of $1500 related to reserves previ

ously established in the United States for transfer pricing

During the third quarter of the 2008 fiscal year the Company

recognized tax benefit of $540 related to reserves that were

deemed no longer required due to change in market condi

tions During the second quarter of the 2008 fiscal year the

Company recognized tax benefit of $537 for the elimination

of reserve in foreign jurisdiction where the Company no

longer operates

United States 2422 $13729 $18330

Foreign 16587 29565 25812

Earnings from continuing operations

before income taxes $19009 $43294 $44142

The Companys effective income tax rate differs from the

statutory U.S Federal income tax rate as result of the

following

Statutory U.S Federal tax rate

State and local taxes net of

Federal benefit

Foreign tax rate differentials

Valuation allowance on deferred

tax assets

Adjustment of tax accruals

and reserves

Utilization of net operating

loss carryovers

Foreign tax credits

Other net

2.6% 19.9% 9.9%

The Company had total net operating loss carryforwards of

approximately $24300 and $19200 in fiscal years 2009 and

2008 respectively All of the total net operating loss carry-

forwards related to foreign operations in fiscal years 2009

and 2008 The foreign net operating loss carryforwards have

no expiration

Accrued Liabilities As part of its evaluation of deferred tax assets the Company

March March recognized tax benefit of $3500 during the 2007 fiscal year

2009 2008
relating to the elimination of certain valuation allowances previ

2485 3812 ously established in the United States During the 2007 fiscal

989 966 year the Company also recognized tax benefit of $1391 relat

1233 1274 ing to the elimination of reserves no longer required as the

844 1577 result of the completion of tax audit $499 tax benefit

2239 1169
relating to life insurance arrangement termination charge

3635 4516 and tax benefit of $715 relating to the recognition of tax

credits resulting from operating losses sustained in prior years

in France

The components of earnings before income taxes were as

follows

Fiscal Year

2009 2008 2007

Fiscal Year

2009 2008 2007

Fiscal Year

2009 2008 2007

34.0% 35.0% 35.0%

0.6 0.9 0.3

7.7 8.11 9.1

24.0 0.1 4.4

0.4 16.01 5.81

1.6

3.2 2.31 2.1

3.3 0.3 1.81
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The Company had New York State investment tax credits of

$1180 and $2164 in fiscal years 2009 and 2008 respectively

The reduction of the investment tax credit carryforward is pri

marily due to the recapture of certain credits in accordance

with New York State Tax Law in connection with the closing of

the Companys New England Laminates Co Inc business unit

located in Newburgh New York $50 benefit has been recog

nized for these credits however the Company does not believe

that realization of the principal portion of the investment tax

credit carryforward is more likely than not

The deferred tax asset valuation allowance of $8787 as

of March 2009 related to foreign net operating losses and

New York State investment tax credit carryforwards Deferred

income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differ

ences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

for financial reporting purposes and the amounts for income tax

purposes Significant components of the Companys long-term

deferred tax liabilities and assets as of March 2009 and

March 2008 were as follows

March March

2009 2008

5757 4455

7657 6125

1180 2164

4310 5422

18904 18166

8787 13014

10117 5152

1354 1665

3056 3186

4410 4851

5707 301

Net deferred tax assets are included in non-current Other

assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets In addition

Prepaid expenses and other current assets on the Con

solidated Balance Sheets include French income tax refund

of $1811 which the Company expects to receive in the 2010

fiscal year first quarter

At March 2009 the Company had gross tax-affected

unrecognized tax benefits of $702 all of which if recognized

would impact the effective tax rate reconciliation of the

beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is

as follows

Balance as of March 2008

Gross increasestax positions in prior period

Gross decreasestax positions in prior period

Gross increasescurrent period tax positions

Gross decreasescurrent period tax positions

Lapse of statute of limitations

Balance as of March 2009 $702

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits may increase or

decrease in the future for various reasons including adding or

reducing amounts for current year tax positions expiration of

statutes of limitation on open income tax returns changes in

managements judgment about the level of uncertainty status

of tax examinations and legislative activity The Company

does not expect the unrecognized tax benefits to significantly

decrease during the 2010 fiscal year

list of open tax years by major jurisdiction follows

0042009

20032009

20032009

20042009

20042009

20042009

The Company had approximately $180 and $140 of accrued

interest and penalties as of March 2009 and March 2008

respectively The Companys policy is to include applicable

interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as

component of income tax expense

Stock-Based Compensation

As of March 2009 the Company had 1992 Stock Option

Plan and 2002 Stock Option Plan and no other stock-based

compensation plan Both Stock Option Plans have been

approved by the Companys stockholders and provide for the

grant of stock options to directors and key employees of the

Company All options granted under such Plans have exercise

PARK
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Unrecognized

Tax Benefits

$952

250

Deferred tax assets

Impairment of fixed assets

Net operating loss carryforwards

New York State investment tax credits

Other net

Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax assets

Depreciation

Offshore Singapore earnings subject to

local tax

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax

United States

Arizona

California

New York

France

Singapore



Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

Three years ended March 2009

In thousands except share per share and option amounts

prices equal to the fair market value of the underlying common

stock of the Company at the time of grant which pursuant to

the terms of the Plans is the reported closing price of the com

mon stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the date pre

ceding the date the option is granted Options granted under

the Plans become exercisable 25% one year from the date of

grant with an additional 25% exercisable each succeeding

anniversary of the date of grant and expire 10 years from the

date of grant The authority to grant additional options under

the 1992 Stock Option Plan expired on March 24 2002 and

options to purchase total of 1800000 shares of common

stock were authorized for grant under the 2002 Stock Option

Plan At March 2009 2029333 shares of common stock of

the Company were reserved for issuance upon exercise of

stock options under the 1992 Stock Option Plan and the 2002

Stock Option Plan and 1046606 shares were available for

future grant under the 2002 Stock Option Plan Options to pur

chase 146850 and 168150 shares of common stock were

granted during the 2009 fiscal year and 2008 fiscal year

respectively

The Company records its stock-based compensation at fair

value in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 123 revised 2004 Share-Based Payment

SFAS 123R
The compensation expense for stock options includes an

estimate for forfeitures and is recognized over the vesting term

using the ratable method Prior to the Companys adoption of

SFAS 123R benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized

compensation costs were reported as operating cash flows

SFAS 123R requires that such benefits be recorded as financ

ing cash inflow rather than as reduction of taxes paid

The future compensation expense affecting earnings before

income taxes for options outstanding at March 2009 will

be $2026

The weighted average fair value for options was estimated

at the dates of grants using the Black-Scholes option-pricing

model to be $3.22 for fiscal year 2009 $10.30 for fiscal year

2008 and $10.84 for fiscal year 2007 with the following

assumptions risk free interest rate of 2.75%4.00% for fiscal

year 2009 4.75% for fiscal year 2008 and 4.0%5.0% for

fiscal year 2007 expected volatility factors of 27.5%32.5%

32.i%32.4% and 34.4%58.8% for fiscal years 2009 2008

and 2007 respectively expected dividend yield of 1.18%

1.77% for fiscal year 2009 1.06% for fiscal year 2008 and

1.0%i .6% for fiscal year 2007 and estimated option terms of

4.75.6 years for fiscal year 2009 5.25.4 years for fiscal year

2008 and 4.05.6 years for fiscal year 2007

The estimated term of the options is based on evaluations of

historical and expected future employee exercise behavior The

risk free interest rate is based on U.S Treasury rates at the date

of grant with maturity dates approximately equal to the esti

mated term of the options at the date of the grant Volatility is

based on historical volatility of the Companys stock

Information with respect to options follows

Balance February 26 2006

Granted

Exercised

Terminated or expired

Balance February 25 2007

Granted

Exercised

Terminated or expired

Balance March 2008

Granted

Exercised

Terminated or expired

Balance March 2009

Outstanding Weighted Average

Options Exercise Price

644742

At March 2009 982727 stock options were outstanding

having weighted average remaining contract term of 5.53

years and an aggregate intrinsic value of $0 At March 2009

644742 stock options were exercisable having weighted

average remaining contract term of 3.94 years and an aggre

gate intrinsic value of $0

summary of the status of the Companys nonvested options

at March 2009 and changes during the fiscal year then

ended is presented below

Shares Subject Weighted Average

to Options Grant Date Fair Value

Nonvested beginning

of year 361372 $9.90

Granted 146850 3.22

Vested 116875 9.55

Terminated 53362 9.69

Nonvested end of year 337985 $7.16

The total values realized the market value of the underlying

shares on the date of exercise less the exercise price times

the number of shares acquired from the exercise of options

during the 2009 2008 and 2007 fiscal years were $1259

1003454

174700

80236

2911

1066627

168150

152086

41952

1040739

146850

123649

81213

982727

$20.80

25.35

17.85

26.07

$21.61

30.29

17.74

25.27

$23.50

26.36

18.07

26.72

24.35

$22.82Exercisable March 2009
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$1889 and $1153 respectively Stock options available for

future grant under the 2002 Stock Option Plan at March 2009

and March 2008 were 1046606 and 223193 respectively

Stockholders Equity

Stockholders Rights PlanOn July 20 2005 the Board of

Directors renewed the Companys stockholders rights plan on

substantially the same terms as its previous rights plan which

expired in July 2005 In accordance with the Companys stock

holders rights plan right the Right to purchase from the

Company unit consisting of one one-thousandth 1/1000 of

share Unit of Series Junior Participating Preferred

Stock par value $1.00 per share the Series Preferred

Stock at purchase price of $150 the Purchase Price per

Unit subject to adjustment is attached to each outstanding

share of the Companys common stock The Rights expire on

July 20 2015 Subject to certain exceptions the Rights will

become exercisable 10 business days after person acquires

20 percent or more of the Companys outstanding common

stock or commences tender offer that would result in such

persons owning 20 percent or more of such stock If any per

son acquires 20 percent or more of the Companys outstanding

common stock the rights of holders other than the acquiring

person become rights to buy shares of the Companys com

mon stock or of the acquiring company if the Company is

involved in merger or other business combination and is not

the surviving corporation having market value of twice the

Purchase Price of each Right The Company may redeem the

Rights for $01 per Right until 10 business days after the first

date of public announcement by the Company that person

acquired 20 percent or more of the Companys outstanding

common stock

Reserved Common SharesAt March 2009 2029333

shares of common stock were reserved for issuance upon exer

cise of stock options

Accumulated Other Comprehensive IncomeAccumulated

balances related to each component of other comprehensive

income were as follows

54

$1622 $7436

Dividends DeclaredOn July 19 2007 the Company

announced that its Board of Directors had declared special

cash dividend of $1.50 per share which was paid August 22

2007 and was in addition to the Companys regular quarterly

cash dividends of $0.08 per share

10 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net earnings

by the weighted average number of shares of common stock

outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per share are

computed by dividing net earnings by the sum of the

weighted average number of shares of common stock out

standing during the period and the potential common stock

equivalents outstanding during the period Stock options are

the only common stock equivalents and the number of dilutive

options is computed using the treasury stock method

The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and

diluted earnings per share for the last three fiscal years

Net earnings from continuing

operations

Gain from discontinued

operations

Net earnings

Weighted average common

shares outstanding for

basic EPS

Net effect of dilutive options

Weighted average shares

outstanding for diluted

EPS

Basic earnings per share

Net earnings from continu

ing operations

Gain from discontinued

operations

Basic earnings per share

16486

$35000 $34679 $39791

20441354 20305199 20175422

44762 59004 141418

20486116 20364203 20316840

0.90 1.71 1.97

0.81

1.71 1.71 1.97

0.90 1.70 1.96

0.81

1.71 1.70 1.96

PARK
ELECTROCHEMICAL CORP

2009 2008 2007

$18514 $34679 $39791

Currency translation adjustment

Unrealized gains losses on investments

Accumulated balance

Diluted earnings per share

March March
Net earnings from continu

2009 2008 ing operations

Gain from discontinued

$1568 $7227

209
operations

Diluted earnings per share
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Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Three years ended March 2009

In thousands except share per share and option amounts

Common stock equivalents which were not included in the

computation of diluted earnings per share because either the

effect would have been antidilutive or the options exercise

prices were greater than the average market price of the com
mon stock were 123503 10885 and 3619 for the fiscal years

2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

11 Discontinued Operations and Pension Liability

On February 2004 the Company announced that it was

discontinuing its financial support of its Dielektra GmbH

Dielektra subsidiary located in Cologne Germany due to

the continued erosion of the European market for the Com

panys high technology products Without Parks financial sup

port Dielektra filed an insolvency petition which the Company

believes will result in the liquidation of Dielektra In accordance

with SFAS No 144 Accounting for the lmpairrnent or Disposal

of Long-Lived Assets Dielektra is treated as discontinued

operation As result of the discontinuation of financial support

for Dielektra the Company recognized an impairment charge

of $22023 for the write-off of Dielektra assets and other

costs during the fourth quarter of the 2004 fiscal year The

liabilities from discontinued operations are reported separately

on the Consolidated Balance Sheets These liabilities from dis

continued operations included $12094 for Dielektras deferred

pension liability

In the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter the Company recog

nized gain of $16486 related to the reversal of these liabilities

as result of the Companys judgment that the incurrence of

such liabilities is remote based on certain legal proceedings

in Germany

Liabilities for discontinued operations as of March 2009

eir nil iehilitic for dicrrntiniterl onp.rtionc of IsAsrh

2008 consisted of the following

Environmental and other liabilities

Pension liabilities

Total liabilities

12 Realignment and Severance Charges

In the 2009 fiscal year fourth quarter the Company recorded

one-time pre-tax charges of $5688 related to the closure of

the Companys New England Laminates Co Inc electronic

materials business unit located in Newburgh New York and

the closure of the Companys Neltec Europe SAS electronic

materials business unit located in Mirebeau France and related

to an asset impairment and workforce reduction at the

Companys Nelco Products Pte Ltd electronic materials and

advanced composite materials business unit in Singapore The

charges for the closure of the business units included non-

cash asset impairment charge of $650 and were net of the

recapture of non-cash cumulative currency translation adjust

ments of $3957 In the 2009 fiscal year third quarter the

Company recorded pre-tax charge of $570 related to restruc

turings at certain of its North American and European business

units The Company paid $3045 of these charges during

the 2009 fiscal year and expects to pay the remaining $3213

during the 2010 fiscal year

In the 2008 fiscal year fourth quarter the Company recorded

charge of $1362 for employment termination benefits and

other expenses resulting from restructuring and workforce

reduction at the Companys Neltec Europe SAS business unit

The Company paid $626 of these charges during the 2008

fiscal year and paid the remaining $736 during the 2009 fis

cal year

During the 2004 fiscal year the Company recorded charges

related to the realignment of its North America volume printed

circuit materials operations The charges were for employment

termination benefits of $1258 which were fully paid in fiscal

year 2004 and lease and other obligations of $7292 All costs

other than the lease obligations were settled prior to fiscal year

2007 The future lease obligations are payable through

September 2013 The remaining balances on the lease obliga

tions relating to the realignment were $3209 and $3706 as of

March 2009 and March 2008 respectively The Company

applied $497 and $443 of payments against this liability during

the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years respectively

two life insurance policies payable on the death of the survivor

of Jerry Shore and his spouse with an aggregate face value of

$5 million and annual premium payments by the Company of

approximately $129 was implemented in 1997 but discontin

ued in 2004 in light of certain provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 and due to changes in the income taxation of split-

dollar life insurance arrangements The arrangement is more

fully described in the Companys annual proxy statements for

each of the years 1998 through 2007 Pursuant to an agree

ment entered into between Jerry Shore and the Company the

5087

12094

$17181

13 Insurance Arrangement Termination Charge

March
During the 2007 fiscal year the Company terminated split

2008 dollar life insurance arrangement with Jerry Shore the Com

panys founder and former Chairman President and Chief

Executive Officer The insurance arrangement which involved
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termination of the insurance arrangement involved payment

of $1335 by the Company to Mr Shore in January 2007 Such

termination and payment resulted in net cash cost to the

Company of $685 after the Companys receipt of portion of

the cash surrender value of the life insurance policies The

Company recorded pre-tax charge of $1316 in the 2007 fiscal

year in connection with this termination and recognized $499

tax benefit relating to this insurance termination charge

14 Employee Benefit Plans

Profit Sharing PlanThe Company and certain of its subsid

iaries have non-contributory profit sharing retirement plan

covering their regular full-time employees The plan may be

modified or terminated at any time but in no event may any

portion of the contributions revert back to the Company The

Companys estimated contributions are accrued at the end of

each fiscal year and paid to the plan in the subsequent fiscal

year The Companys actual contributions to the plan were

$833 and $900 for fiscal years 2008 and 2007 respectively

The contribution for fiscal year 2009 has not been paid

Savings PlanThe Company also sponsors 401k savings

plan pursuant to which the contributions of employees of

certain subsidiaries were partially matched by the Company

in the amounts of $210 $222 and $247 in fiscal years 2009

2008 and 2007 respectively

15 Commitments

The Company conducts certain of its operations in leased facili

ties which include several manufacturing plants warehouses

and offices The leases on facilities are for terms of up to 10

years the latest of which expires in 2015 Many of the leases

contain renewal options for periods ranging from one to ten

years and require the Company to pay real estate taxes and

other operating costs The latest land lease expiration is 2054

These non-cancelable operating leases have the following

payment schedule

Rental expenses inclusive of real estate taxes and other

costs were $2721 $2465 and $2047 for fiscal years 2009

2008 and 2007 respectively

In addition the Company has commitments to purchase

equipment for its development and manufacturing facility in

Newton Kansas of $3483

16 Contingencies

LitigationThe Company is subject to small number of

proceedings lawsuits and other claims related to environmen

tal employment product and other matters The Company is

required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or

outcomes in these matters as well as potential ranges of prob

able losses determination of the amount of reserves required

if any for these contingencies is made after careful analysis of

each individual issue The required reserves may change in the

future due to new developments in each matter or changes in

approach such as change in settlement strategy in dealing

with these matters

Environmental ContingenciesThe Company and certain of

its subsidiaries have been named by the Environmental Pro

tection Agency the EPA or comparable state agency under

the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation

and Liability Act the Superfund Act or similar state law as

potentially responsible parties in connection with alleged

releases of hazardous substances at nine sites In addition

two subsidiaries of the Company have received cost recovery

claims under the Superfund Act from other private parties

involving two other sites and subsidiary of the Company

has received requests from the EPA under the Superfund

Act for information with respect to its involvement at three

other sites

Under the Superfund Act and similar state laws all parties

who may have contributed any waste to hazardous waste

disposal site or contaminated area identified by the EPA or

comparable state agency may be jointly and severally liable for

the cost of cleanup Generally these sites are locations at

which numerous persons disposed of hazardous waste In the

PARK
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Contributions are discretionary and may not exceed the amount

allowable as tax deduction under the Internal Revenue Code

Fiscal Year

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Thereafter

Amount
case of the Companys subsidiaries generally the waste was

removed from their manufacturing facilities and disposed at

$2335
waste sites by various companies which contracted with the

subsidiaries to provide waste disposal services Neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries have been accused of or

679
charged with any wrongdoing or illegal acts in connection with

1480 any such sites The Company believes it maintains an effective

and comprehensive environmental compliance program
$8754
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Three years ended March 2009

In thousands except share per share and option amounts

The insurance carriers who provided general liability insur

ance coverage to the Company and its subsidiaries for the years

during which the Companys subsidiaries waste was disposed

at these sites have agreed to pay or reimburse the Company

and its subsidiaries for 100% of their legal defense and reme

diation costs associated with three of these sites and 25% of

such costs associated with another one of these sites

The total costs incurred by the Company and its subsidiaries

in connection with these sites including legal fees incurred by

the Company and its subsidiaries and their assessed share of

remediation costs and excluding amounts paid or reimbursed

by insurance carriers were approximately $117 $11 and $13 in

fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The recorded

liabilities included in accrued liabilities for environmental mat

ters were $844 $1577 and $1757 for fiscal years 2009 2008

and 2007 respectively

Such recorded liabilities do not include environmental liabili

ties and related legal expenses for which the Company has

concluded indemnification agreements with the insurance carri

ers who provided general liability insurance coverage to the

Company and its subsidiaries for the years during which the

Companys subsidiaries waste was disposed at three sites for

which certain subsidiaries of the Company have been named

as potentially responsible parties pursuant to which agree

ments such insurance carriers have been paying 100% of the

legal defense and remediation costs associated with such three

sites since 1985

Included in cost of sales are charges for actual expenditures

and accruals based on estimates for certain environmental

matters described above The Company accrues estimated

costs associated with known environmental matters when

such costs can be reasonably estimated and when the outcome

appears probable The Company believes that the ultimate

disposition of known environmental matters will not have

material adverse effect on the liquidity capital resources busi

ness or consolidated results of operations or financial position

of the Company However one or more of such environmental

matters could have significant negative impact on the

Companys consolidated results of operations or financial posi

tion for particular reporting period

AcquisitionThe Company is obligated to pay up to an addi

tional $5500 over five years depending on the achievement of

specified earn-out objectives in connection with the acquisition

by the Companys wholly owned subsidiary Park Aerospace

Structures Corp of substantially all the assets and business of

Nova Composites Inc manufacturer of composite parts and

the tooling for such parts located in Lynnwood Washington in

addition to cash purchase price of $4500 paid at the closing of

the acquisition on April 2008 The Company is in the process

of determining the additional amount if any up to $1100

payable for the first year

17 Geographic Regions

The Companys printed circuit materials the Nelco product

line the Companys advanced composite materials the

Nelcote product line and the Companys composite parts the

NovaTM product line are sold to customers in North America

Europe and Asia

Sales are attributed to geographic region based upon the

region in which the materials were delivered to the customer

Sales between geographic regions were not significant

Financial information regarding the Companys operations by

geographic region follows

North America $103772 $120953 $137897

Europe 22804 30533 37363

Asia 73486 90366 82117

Total sales $200062 $241852 $257377

Long-lived assets

North America

Europe

Asia

Total long-lived assets

41423 25069 25600

1112 4552 4659

21113 26747 25331

63648 56368 55590

Sales

Fiscal Year

2009 2008 2007
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Current assets

Fixed assets

Intangibles

84

$4728

CustomersSales to Sanmina-SCI Corporation were 13.6%

13.4% and 16.7% of the Companys total worldwide sales

for fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Sales to

TTM Technologies Inc TIM were 12.1% 10.8% and 10.7%

of the Companys total worldwide sales for fiscal years

2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The sales to TTM during

the 2007 fiscal year included sales to Tyco Printed Circuit Group

L.P which was acquired by TIM during the Companys 2007

fiscal year

While no other customer accounted for 10% or more of the

Companys total worldwide sales in fiscal years 2009 2008

and 2007 and the Company is not dependent on any single

customer the loss of major printed circuit materials customer

or of group of customers could have material adverse effect

on the Companys business or consolidated results of opera

tions or financial position

Sources of SupplyThe principal materials used in the man

ufacture of the Companys high-technology printed circuit

materials and advanced composite materials and parts are spe

cially manufactured copper foil fiberglass cloth and synthetic

reinforcements and specially formulated resins and chemicals

Although there are limited number of qualified suppliers of

these materials the Company has nevertheless identified

alternate sources of supply for each of such materials While

the Company has not experienced significant problems in the

delivery of these materials and considers its relationships with

its suppliers to be strong disruption of the supply of material

from principal supplier could adversely affect the Companys

business Furthermore substitutes for these materials are not

readily available and an inability to obtain essential materials

if prolonged could materially adversely affect the Companys

business

19 Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board

issued SFAS No 141R revised 2007 which replaces SFAS

No 141 Business Combinations SFAS No 141R This

statement requires an acquirer upon initially obtaining control

of another entity to recognize the assets liabilities and any

non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value as of the

acquisition date This fair value approach replaces the original

Statement 141s cost allocation process whereby the cost of an

acquisition was allocated to the individual assets acquired and

liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair value SFAS

No 141R requires acquirers to expense acquisition-related costs

as incurred rather than allocating such costs to the assets

acquired and liabilities assumed as was previously the case

under SFAS No 141 The adoption of SFAS No 141 will impact

how the Company records future business combinations

20 Acquisition

On April 2008 the Companys wholly owned subsidiary Park

Aerospace Structures Corp acquired substantially all the

assets and business of Nova Composites Inc located in

Lynnwood Washington for cash purchase price of $4500

paid at the closing of the acquisition and up to an additional

$5500 payable over five years depending on the achievement

of specified earn-out objectives Park Aerospace Structures

Corp manufactures aircraft composite parts and the tooling for

such parts Parks composite parts product line is marketed and

sold as Parks NovaTM product line

The allocation of the purchase price is as follows

181

174

4457

Total assets acquired 4812

Current liabilities assumed

Total Purchase Price

41



Park EIectrochemica Corp and Subsidiaries

Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

In thousands except per share amounts

Quarter

First Second Third Fourth

Fiscal 2009

Net sales $59800 $55599 $49166 $35497

Gross profit 14573 10953 9786 8112

Net earnings from continuing operations 7557 4937 2934 3086

Discontinued operations
16486

Net Earnings 7557 4937 2934 19572

Basic earnings per share

Net earnings from continuing operations 0.37 0.24 0.14 0.15

Discontinued operations
0.81

Net earnings per share 0.37 0.24 0.14 0.96

Diluted earnings per share

Net earnings from continuing operations 0.37 0.24 0.14 0.15

Discontinued operatons
0.81

Net earnings per share 0.37 0.24 0.14 0.96

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 20366 20458 20471 20471

Diluted 20430 20520 20512 20483

Fiscal 2008

Net sales $57077 $60541 $63653 $60581

Gross profit 14109 16435 16076 15834

Net earnings 7411 9160 8777 9331

Basic earnings per share

Net earnings per share 0.37 0.45 0.43 0.46

Diluted earnings per share

Net earnings per share 0.37 0.45 0.43 0.46

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 20206 20325 20340 20347

Diluted 20235 20405 20452 20362

Earnings per share are computed separately for each quarter Therefore the sum of such quarterly per share amounts may differ

from the total for the years
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Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establish

ing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange

Act The Companys internal control over financial reporting is

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reli

ability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles in the United States of America

The Companys internal control over financial reporting includes

those policies and procedures that pertain to the mainte

nance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

Company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company

are being made only in accordance with authorizations of man

agement and directors of the Company and iii provide reason

able assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over

financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future

periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inad

equate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys

internal control over financial reporting as of March 2009

In making this assessment management used the criteria

set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control

Integrated Framework Based on managements assessment

and those criteria management concluded that the Company

maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as

of March 2009

The independent registered public accounting firm that

audited the Companys financial statements included in this

Annual Report has issued an attestation report on the Com

panys internal control over financial reporting That report

appears in this Annual Report under the heading Attestation

Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Safe Harbor Statement

This Report may contain forward-looking statements as

defined under the Federal Securities Laws including the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Certain portions of

this Report which do not relate to historical financial informa

tion may be deemed to constitute forward-looking statements

Generally you can identify forward-looking statements by the use

of words such as expect estimate project budget

forecast anticipate goal intend plan may will

could should believes predicts potential continue

and similar expressions or the negative or other variations

thereof Such forward-looking statements are based on current

expectations that involve number of uncertainties and risks

that may cause actual events or results to differ materially from

the Companys expectations or from results which might be

projected forecasted estimated or budgeted by the Company
in forward-looking statements Factors that could cause actual

events or results to differ materially include but are not limited to

PARK
ELECTROCHEMICAL CORP

general conditions in the electronics and aerospace industries

the Companys competitive position the status of the Companys

relationships with its customers economic conditions in inter

national markets the cost and availability of raw materials

transportation and utilities and the various other factors set

forth in Item 1A Risk Factors and under the caption Factors

That May Affect Future Results after Item of the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March

2009 These and other risks may be detailed from time to time

in the Companys periodic reports filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission including but not limited to its fiscal year

2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K and other SEC filings copies

of which may be obtained from www.sec.gov The Company is

under no obligation to and expressly disclaims any such obliga

tion to update any of the information contained herein if any

forward-looking statement later turns out to be inaccurate whether

as result of new information future events or otherwise

43



Park Electrochemical Corp and Subsidiaries

Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholders and Board of Directors of

Park Electrochemical Corp

We have audited Park Electrochemical Corp and subsidiaries

the Company internal control over financial reporting as

of March 2009 based on criteria established in Internal

Controlintegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO The Companys management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting

and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting based on

our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all

material respects Our audit included obtaining an understand

ing of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk

that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as

we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is pro

cess designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reason

able detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reason

able assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accor

dance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding pre

vention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material

effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over finan

cial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods

are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compli

ance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Park Electrochemical Corp and subsidiaries

maintained in all material respects effective internal control

over financial reporting as of March 2009 based on criteria

established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued

by COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets of Park Electrochemical

Corp and subsidiaries as of March 2009 and March 2008

and the related consolidated statements of operations stock

holders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the

period ended March 2009 and our report dated May 13

2009 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated

financial statements

New York New York

May 13 2009
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Park Electrochenical Corp aod Subsidiaries

Stock Performance Graph

The graph set forth below compares the annual cumulative total return for the Companys five fiscal years ended March 2009

among the Company the New York Stock Exchange Market Index the NYSE Index and Morningstar Inc formerly Hemscott

Inc index for electronic components and accessories manufacturers the Group Index comprised of the Company and 221

other companies The companies in the Group Index are classified in the same three-digit industry group in the Standard Industrial

Classification Code system and are described as companies primarily engaged in the manufacture of electronic components and

accessories The returns of each company in the Group Index have been weighted according to the companys stock market capi

talization The graph has been prepared based on an assumed investment of $100 on February 27 2004 and the reinvestment of

dividends where applicable
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Park Electrochemical Corp Group Index NYSE Market Index

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Park Electrochemical Corp $100.00 78.81 $122.28 $125.40 $109.63 $74.17

Group Index 100.00 75.21 83.05 82.67 74.79 40.65

NYSE Index 100.00 108.93 121.56 137.50 134.88 75.03
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Park Electrochernicai Corp and Subsidiaries

Market for the Companys Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Companys common stock is listed and trades on the New
For the Fiscal Year Ended

Stock Price
Dividends

York Stock Exchange trading symbol PKE The common stock March 2008 High Low Declared

also trades on the Chicago Stock Exchange The following
First Quarter $29.87 $25.68 $0.08

table sets forth for each of the quarterly periods indicated the
Second Quarter 33.99 26.05 1.58

high and low sales prices for the common stock as reported on
Third Quarter 37.17 28.16 0.08

the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape and dividends
Fourth Quarter 31.66 21.11 0.08

declared on the common stock

Stock Price During the 2008 fiscal year second quarter the Company declared its regular

For the Fiscal Year Ended _______________ Dividends
quarterly cash dividend of $0.08 per share in June 2007 and in July 2007 the

March 2009 High Low Declared
Company announced that its Board of Directors had declared one-time special

First Quarter $30.55 $22.58 $0.08
cash dividend of $1.50 per share payable August 22 2007 to stockholders of record

on August 2007
Second Quarter 29.83 22.77 0.08

Third Quarter 30.91 12.99 0.08 As of May 11 2009 there were approximately 840 holders

Fourth Quarter 21.64 15.28 0.08
of record of common stock
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